
           

ATTENTION
IN-PERSON AUDIENCES AT PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETINGS

HAVE BEEN SUSPENDED UNTIL FURTHER NOTICE
The meetings will continue to be live streamed on the city's website

(https://www.flagstaff.az.gov/1461/Streaming-City-Council-Meetings)

To participate in the meeting click the following link:
Join Microsoft Teams Meeting

The public can submit comments that will be read at the dais by a staff member
to CDPandZCommission@flagstaffaz.gov

NOTICE AND AGENDA
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
WEDNESDAY
*FEBRUARY 24, 2021

  COUNCIL CHAMBERS
211 WEST ASPEN AVENUE

             4:00 P.M.

           

1. Call to Order   

 

2. Roll Call
  
NOTE: One or more Commission Members may be in attendance telephonically or by other
technological means.
  
MARIE JONES, VICE CHAIR
DAVID ZIMMERMAN, CHAIR
GAYLENE SOPER
CAROLE MANDINO

LLOYD PAUL
DR. ALEX MARTINEZ
ERIC NOLAN
 

  

 

3. Public Comment

At this time, any member of the public may address the Commission on any subject within
their jurisdiction that is not scheduled before the Commission on that day. Due to Open
Meeting Laws, the Commission cannot discuss or act on items presented during this portion
of the agenda. To address the Commission on an item that is on the agenda, please wait for
the Chair to call for Public Comment at the time the item is heard.

  

 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Approval of Minutes from the regular meeting on Wednesday, February 10, 2021.
 

  

 

5. PUBLIC HEARING    

 

A. PZ-20-000141-02 Whispering Winds Sign Landmark Overlay
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDED ACTION:
 

 

  

https://www.flagstaff.az.gov/1461/Streaming-City-Council-Meetings
https://gcc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/ap/t-59584e83/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fteams.microsoft.com%2Fl%2Fmeetup-join%2F19%253ameeting_MzEyOTcwYWYtZWVhNy00ZTMxLWE3YTAtNjU1MDJhNzAyNjU3%2540thread.v2%2F0%3Fcontext%3D%257b%2522Tid%2522%253a%25225da727b9-fb88-48b4-aa07-2a40088a046d%2522%252c%2522Oid%2522%253a%252245b8a659-c639-43cc-90e4-3cdfc843a807%2522%257d&data=04%7C01%7Ctbishop%40flagstaffaz.gov%7Ca9cf4b1d9df746cbf2e408d8bf0f4843%7C5da727b9fb8848b4aa072a40088a046d%7C0%7C0%7C637469419646812365%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=NsC2G7nSAXIuSUiUX8sGgvB7fy%2B3SLyN%2B63Xzc0993U%3D&reserved=0
mailto:CDPandZCommission@flagstaffaz.gov


  Staff recommends the Planning and Zoning Commission, in accordance with the findings
presented in the attached report and attachments, forward the Direct to Ordinance Zoning Map
Amendment request to the City Council with a recommendation for approval.

 

6. GENERAL BUSINESS   

 

A. Appointments: Incentive Policy for Affordable Housing and related Zoning Code Update
Workgroup

 

STAFF RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Staff is requesting that the Planning and Zoning Commission appoint two Commission

members to a workgroup that will be utilized to provide recommendations to the Housing and
Planning and Zoning Commissions on updates to the Incentive Policy for Affordable
Housing (IPAH) and related modifications to the Zoning Code.

 

7. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS TO/FROM COMMISSION MEMBERS   

 

8. ADJOURNMENT   

 

CERTIFICATE OF POSTING OF NOTICE 

The undersigned hereby certifies that a copy of the foregoing notice was duly posted at Flagstaff City Hall on                      ,
at   2:00             p.m. This notice has been posted on the City's website and can be downloaded at  www.flagstaff.az.gov.

Dated this      18         day of       FEB                             , 2021

__________________________________________
Tammy Bishop, Administrative Specialist                                             

 

  

http://www.flagstaff.az.gov


   
Planning & Zoning Commission 5. A.        
Meeting Date: 02/24/2021  
From: Mark Reavis, Heritage Preservation Officer and Neighborhood Planner

Information
TITLE: 
PZ-20-000141-02 Whispering Winds Sign Landmark Overlay
 

STAFF RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Staff recommends the Planning and Zoning Commission, in accordance with the findings presented in
the attached report and attachments, forward the Direct to Ordinance Zoning Map Amendment request to
the City Council with a recommendation for approval.

Attachments
WW PZ Staff Report 
Zoning Map Application 
WW Sign Permit Number 1 
Newspaper Notice 
Banner Public Hearing PZ Notice 
HPC Neighborhood Hearing 
2nd Meeting Waiver 
Property Maps and Description 
Notification Letter to adjacents 
HPC Historic Facade and Signs Grant Application 
Landmark Overlay Ap 
HPC staff report 
WW HPO Staff amend 
HPO signature permision 
WW posting condition 
February 3, 2021 HPC minutes 



PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT
DIRECT TO ORDINANCE ZONING MAP AMENDMENT

PUBLIC HEARING DATE: February 5, 2021
PZ-20-00141-02 MEETING DATE: February 24,2021

REPORT BY: Mark Reavis, HPO

REQUEST:
Direct to Ordinance Zoning Map Amendment of 922 E Route 66, presented by the city’s Heritage Preservation Program on behalf 
of the property owner, for the restoration of a historic sign. The request is to zone the property into the Landmark Overlay (LO)
in addition to the existing zoning of Highway Commercial (HC) with the condition that that landmark review only apply to the 
historic sign.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends the Planning and Zoning Commission, in accordance with the findings presented in this report, forward 
the Direct to Ordinance Zoning Map Amendment request to the City Council with a recommendation for approval.

PRESENT LAND USE:
The subject property is approximately 0.82 acres that fronts Route 66. The parcel is owned by WW.66 LLC, 6164 E. Abineau 
Canyon Dr. Flagstaff AZ. The property is used for commercial activities as a Motel. The motel has been closed for room interior 
renovations and some exterior repairs in compliance with preservation standards.  The property is consistent in use with other 
motels and commercial enterprises along Route 66. The Whispering Winds Motel is an exceptional example of mid-century 
modern architectural design that has retained its form and architectural features. 

The sign though has suffered from weather exposure, some modifications, and the loss of the upper portion of the sign, a semi-
oval form which once featured the motel’s name and the upper portion of the sign’s spire.

PROPOSED LAND USE:
The applicant proposes to rehabilitate the existing remains of the historic motel sign and to restore the missing upper sign 
component as will be allowed per provisions of the Heritage Preservation 10-30.30. The land use will remain the same and is to 
include a historic overlay. Per 10-50.100.020 A. Applicability, 4. Heritage signs in landmark zones are governed by the ordinance 
designating the landmark overlay and its related guidelines (Refer to Division 10-30.30, Heritage Preservation.) of the zoning code
that allows historic signs to be restored to original condition even if the sign areas exceed the allowable sign area, height and 
other conditions when the sign is brought into the landmark overlay.

NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT:
See the attached area context map.

North: Single-Family Residential (R1) zone on vacant hillside up to Cherry Hill neighborhood (R1) zone
East: Motel, Aspen Inn Highway Commercial (HC) zone
South: Route 66 and Railway (BNSF) Light Industrial (LI) zone
West: Norvel Owens Mortuary Highway Commercial (HC) zone

I. Project Introduction
A. Background

The site to be rezoned for mapping purposes is approximately .82 acres comprised of property located adjacent to 
Route 66 with an existing historic Route 66 Motel, the Whispering Winds. The rezoning for a Landmark Overlay is 
applicable to the historic sign only. The property can further be described by: Assessor’s Parcel Number 104-05-005, 
situated at Sixteenth: NW Quarter: NE Section:22 Township:21 Range: 07E PT of NE4 Comm ATN4, located at 922 E 
Route 66, City of Flagstaff, Coconino County, Arizona.



2

This project has been submitted as PZ-20-00141-02 for review of an application to the Heritage Preservation 
Commission (HPC) for a Historic Façades and Signs Grant Program. The grant application was reviewed and approved 
and again verified by the Heritage Preservation Commission at a meeting held on 02/03/2021 confirming grant 
compliance of the design graphics presented, a written narrative and a sign permit application submitted for 
confirmation of the design to be reviewed for implementation pending Council approval of the rezoning.  

A recording of the grant application Commission meeting may be reviewed on the City’s website: 
https://flagstaffaz.new.swagit.com/videos/55447

B. Proposed Rezoning
The Heritage Preservation Program is requesting rezoning of the property with a Landmark Overlay (LO) designation to 
allow for the full historic restoration of the motel’s sign. Approval of a sign permit application to enable restoration of the 
historic sign in accordance with HPC grant conditions is currently pending.  Grant execution and sign restoration will move 
forward should City Council approve the rezoning request.

II. Staff Review
The Heritage Preservation Officer reviewed the Historic Facades and Signs Grant application in August 2020 and 
forwarded it to the Heritage Preservation Commission for approval on August 19, 2020. Approval of the grant application 
requires a review of the proposal and a finding of significance integrity and compliance with the Secretary of interior’s 
Guidelines for Restoration. The HPO determined that the sign met the requirements of historical significance and, in 
awarding the grant, HPC reached the same conclusion evaluated under 10-30.30.040.E Individual Signs of Historic or 
Cultural Significance. The proposed sign restoration is subject to successfully obtaining a Direct to Ordinance Zoning Map 
Amendment (rezoning).  

The criteria of Flagstaff City Code 10.30.30.040.C.3 designation of Landmarks Properties or Historic Overlay Zones were 
met on October 21,2020. On November 19th, 2020 the rezoning request was submitted for review with the Inter-
Department Staff (IDS). The application was approved December 31, 2020. A copy of the Zoning Code Map Amendment 
application and the Heritage Preservation Commission grant application is attached to this report. 

A sign permit application, conditioned on the successful rezoning of the property, is currently pending.  Should the 
rezoning be denied, the Historic Façades and Signs Grant as submitted will no longer be approved and the sign permit 
application will be withdrawn.

A. Zoning – City of Flagstaff Zoning Code
If this Direct to Ordinance Zoning Map Amendment request is approved, approximately 0.82 acres will be rezoned
into the LO zone with only the footprint of the sign receiving HPC’s landmark review. As set forth below, staff 
recommends conditioning the zoning map amendment approval on the restoration of the sign complying with the 
approved sign permit and meeting the approved design for the Historic Facades and Signs Grant Application.

i. Site Planning Standards
A substantial portion of the original historic Route 66 motel sign remains standing at approximately 22 feet in 
height. This historic location and its significance will be retained at its current location. Missing from the top of 
the remaining sign is a semi oval cabinet component (4’-11” x 12’-6”) which once called out Whispering Winds 
Motel. Above the oval sign cabinet, also be restored, is the continuing form of the sign’s unique shaped sign pole 
wrap. The sign is to be restored to its original height of 28’-8”. Non-historic additions to the sign will be removed 
and repair and restoration of surfaces will be conducted that includes substantiated historic paint colors related 
to the motel. The historic look of the sign was substantiated by a photo postcard. The submitted sign application, 
narrative and graphics depict the historic form of the sign.



3

ii. Outdoor Lighting
Lighting standards for signs are found in Flagstaff City Code 10-50.100 in a section from which Individual Signs 
of Historic or Cultural Significance are exempted.

iii. Historic/Cultural Resources
The principle reason for the Landmark Overlay zoning map amendment was to provide for the historic 
preservation and restoration of the Route 66 sign itself and to enhance efforts in the preservation of the 
subject property.  

There is no impact to Parking, Landscaping, Compatibility and Architectural Design Standards, Pedestrian and Bicycle 
Circulation System, Open Space and Civic Space or Resource Protection as a result of this project.

III. Direct to Ordinance Zoning Map Amendment
An application for a Direct to Ordinance Zoning Map Amendment shall be submitted to the Planning Director and shall 
be reviewed and a recommendation prepared.  The Planning Director’s recommendation shall be transmitted to the 
Planning and Zoning Commission in the form of a staff report prior to a scheduled public hearing.  The recommendation 
shall include: an evaluation of the consistency and conformance of the proposed amendment with the goals and policies 
of the General Plan and any applicable specific plans; the grounds for the recommendation based on the standards and 
purposes of the zones set forth in Section 10-40.20 (Establishment of Zones) of the Zoning Code; and, whether the 
amendment should be granted, granted with conditions to mitigate anticipated impacts caused by the proposed 
development, or denied.  

Direct to Ordinance Zoning Map Amendments shall be evaluated based on the following findings:

A. Finding #1:
The proposed amendment must be found to be consistent with and in conformance with the goals and policies of the 
General Plan and any applicable specific plans. If the application is not consistent with the General Plan, and any other 
applicable specific plan, the applicable plan must be amended in compliance with the procedures established in Chapter 
11-10 of the City Code (Title 11: General Plans and Subdivisions) prior to considering the proposed amendment.

i. General Plan/Flagstaff Regional Plan (FRP 2030) Process and Analysis Summary
When staff performs a Regional Plan (the “Plan”) analysis, staff reviews all maps, text, and goals and policies to 
determine which are the most relevant in relation to the proposed application.  

Staff has identified the following Goals and Policies as most relevant to the current application proposal.  This 
portion of the analysis is subjective in nature because some policies are given a higher weight in the analysis than 
others.

ii. Applicable General Plan Goals and Policies
As part of its review, staff identified relevant Regional Plan Goals and Policies that could be applied to support the 
proposed Zoning Map Amendment.  Aspects of the project are further discussed in the narrative.  The following is a 
discussion of how the project meets goals and policies.

Community Character (Scenic Resources and Natural Setting, Heritage Preservation, Community Design, 
and Arts, Sciences and Education)
Goal CC.3 aims to preserve, restore, enhance, and reflect the design traditions of Flagstaff. Specifically,
policies CC.3.1 and CC.3.2 discuss the desired design of buildings and their relationship to their context.  The
project design was developed to be site specific and complement traditional design characteristics associated 
with Flagstaff and directly related to documented evidence of the sign’s original design with photo 
documentation for the sign restoration.  The design is appropriate for the region and climate, and consistent 
with surrounding development of Route 66. 



4

Policy CC.4.1 states streetscapes are to be context sensitive and transportation systems are to reflect the 
desired land use while balancing the needs of all modes for traffic safety and construction and maintenance 
costs. The sign will not adversely impact traffic safety with the restoration component being placed high up 
on the existing historic sign pole.

Growth Areas & Land Use (Reinvestment, Greenfield, Urban Area, Suburban Area, Rural Area, Employment 
Area, Special Planning Area, and Activity Centers)
The proposed historic sign restoration is on a developed parcel and its preservation and restoration promotes 
reinvestment in the historic property overall.

B. Finding #2
To meet the finding, the proposed amendment must be determined not to be detrimental to the public interest, health, 
safety, convenience, or welfare of the City of Flagstaff (the “City”); and will add to the public good as described in the 
General Plan. Staff does not believe that the proposed project will be detrimental to the public interest, health, safety, 
convenience, or welfare.  Staff also believes that the proposed amendment will add to the public good.

The staff has identified the following Community Benefits and Public Good:

i. Preservation of a sign identifying a significant historic motel along Route 66 (a roadway of State and National 
significance) is a priority of the city’s Heritage Preservation Program. The retention of the sign keeps essential 
features of Nationally Significant Scenic byway and All-American Road.1

Staff believes that the proposed application meets this finding.  The Inter-Division Staff reviewed the application and 
concluded that the site was suitable for the proposed sign restoration.  The IDS team based its conclusion on the 
review of Flagstaff Zoning Code 10-30.30.040.E Individual Signs of Historic or Cultural Significance as presented by 
the Flagstaff Heritage Preservation Officer and reviewed within the permit for compliance with Section 10-
50.100.050(D), Structure and Installation.

C. Additional Findings for Individual Signs of Historic or Cultural Significance
Flagstaff City Code 10-30.30.040.E states:

1.    Signs which may be unusual, significant, or meaningful to the City streetscape and the City’s history may be 
worthy of special recognition and may be designated as a landmark property in accordance with the 
provisions of this division if they meet the following criteria:

a.    The sign has been in continuous existence at its present location for not less than 50 years;

b.    The sign is of exemplary technology, craftsmanship or design for the period in which it was constructed; 
uses historic sign materials or means of illumination; and/or is unique in that it demonstrates 
extraordinary aesthetic quality, creativity, or innovation;

c.    The sign is structurally safe or is capable of being made so without substantially altering its historical 
character or significance;

d.    If the sign has been altered, it must be restorable to its historic function and appearance; and

e.    The sign complies with Section 10-50.100.050(D), Structure and Installation.

1 The National Scenic Byways Program is a voluntary, community-based program administered through the Federal Highway 
Administration (FHWA) to recognize, protect, and promote America’s most outstanding roads. All-American Roads are the 
highest designation recognized for outstanding scenery, history and cultural landmarks and landscapes.



5

In the case of the Whispering Winds sign restoration:
i. The sign has been in continuous existence for more than 50 years

ii. The sign is exemplary craftsmanship tied to the midcentury modern style of the Route 66 era.
iii. The sign is structural safe and the proposal will not alter but restore its character.
iv. The sign is restorable per the illustrations submitted and evaluation by the Heritage Preservation 

Officer and set forth in the sign permit application.
v. The sign installation will comply with Section 10-50.100.050D of the Zoning Code because there will 

be no external bracing, electrical service will be underground and concealed, and sign is being 
constructed of durable materials.

Effect of Designation. When a sign is found to be significant, designated as a landmark property (Section 10-
30.30.040(C)), and restored to its historic function and appearance, the sign shall not be subject to the provisions of 
Division 10-50.100, Sign Standards.

The Heritage Preservation Commission considered these findings at the February 3, 2021 Special Meeting and affirmed 
that the findings of these sections are met by the proposed zoning map amendment and associated sign application 
(See attached minutes)

IV. DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
A draft development agreement was not requested, the project is subject to terms and conditions of the rezoning 
ordinance, the sign permit, and the grant reviewed by the HPO & HPC as the regulatory mechanism for review of 
changes within landmark overlays.

V. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION
Public hearings before the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council are conducted in conjunction with 
requests for Direct to Ordinance Zoning Map Amendments.  In accordance with State Statute, notice of the public 
hearing was provided by placing an ad in the Daily Sun, posting notices on the property, and mailing a notice to all 
property owners within 300 feet of the site excluding rights-of-way.

The Heritage Preservation Program has held one neighborhood meeting in regard to this case on August 19, 2020.
The meeting was held virtually during the Heritage Preservation Commission. As stated in the HPC meeting minutes,
no member of the public commented upon the project. The public meeting minutes are attached. The meeting 
included a presentation from the Heritage Preservation Officer representing the owner/applicant and a question and 
answer session where questions could be typed into the chat. Comments on the project were not made by the HPC 
members with the HPO staff report being sufficient. No emails from the public were received.

The requirement for a second public meeting was waived by the Planning Director.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends the Planning & Zoning Commission forward the request to the City Council with a recommendation approving
PZ-20-00141-02, subject to the following conditions which will be included into the zoning map amendment ordinance:

1. The subject sign must be developed in accordance with an approved sign permit, which incorporates the design set forth 
in the Heritage Preservation Application grant application dated August 19,2020 and verified in a special Heritage 
Preservation Commission meeting on February 3, 2021.

2. Minor alterations to the design are permitted only if approved by the Heritage Preservation Officer, who may refer 
reviews to the Heritage Preservation Commission.



6

Attachments:
∑ Application
∑ Newspaper Notice
∑ Banner Public Hearing PZ Notice
∑ Review Comments
∑ 2nd meeting Waiver 
∑ Narrative
∑ HPC Neighborhood hearing
∑ Property maps
∑ Notification letter
∑ Historic Facades and Sign Grant application – August 2020
∑ Sign Permit application - January 2020











































NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Flagstaff 
Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a Public 
Hearing on Wednesday, January 27, 2021, at 4:00 
p.m. and the Flagstaff City Council will hold a Public 
Hearing on Wednesday, February 16, 2021, at 3:00 
p.m.to consider the following: 

A. Explanation of Matters to be considered: 

 
1. A proposed amendment to the official City of 

Flagstaff zoning map to designate a historic 
Route 66 sign as a local landmark with its 
full restoration. 

 
The site currently consists of land owned by WW.66 
LLC, 6164 E. Abineau Canyon Dr. Flagstaff AZ. 

B. General Description of the Affected Area: 
The point location of the sign is located in 
approximately .82 acres, Coconino County 
Assessor’s Parcel Number 104-05-005, situated at 
Sixteenth: NW Quarter: NE Section:22 Township:21 
Range: 07E PT of NE4 Comm ATN4, located at 922 
E Route 66, City of Flagstaff, Coconino County, 
Arizona. 

Interested parties may file comments in writing 
regarding the proposed amendment by emailing 
Mark Reavis at mark.reavis@flagstaffaz.gov.  Maps 
and information regarding the proposed amendment 
are available at the City of Flagstaff, Planning and 
Development Services Section, 211 West Aspen 
Avenue. 

Planning and Zoning Commission meetings are held 

virtually in the Council Chambers of City Hall, 211 
West Aspen Avenue, Flagstaff, Arizona. To 
comment at the hearing, email Mark Reavis for an 
invitation to the Teams meeting, or you can watch 
online at http://www.flagstaff.az.gov/streaming 

City Council are also held virtually at the same 

location. To make comments at the City Council 
Hearing, please review and follow the Public 
Comment Protocols at 
http://www.flagstaff.az.gov/streaming 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
109-02-001P 

 

 

 

 

 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT  

Mark Reavis 
Heritage Preservation Officer  
Planning & Development Services   
211 West Aspen Avenue 
Flagstaff, Arizona 86001 
(928) 213-2633 
Mark.Reavis@flagstaffaz.gov 
 
Owner Representative: Jose R. Alvarado | Director 
of Sales | Ascend Capital Management Phone: (928) 
779-6944 | Fax: (928) 774-3990 | Email: 
Jose@ACM-JVT.com 
 
 
 
 
Publish:  

 

 

PROPOSED ZONING MAP AMENDMENT 
For designation of a historic Route 66 sign as a local 

landmark 
 

 
 
ADDRESS: 922 E. Route 66, 
APN: 104-05-005 
ACRES:  Approximately .82 Acres w/point 

location of sign 
  City of Flagstaff 
  Coconino County 

 

http://www.flagstaff.az.gov/streaming
http://www.flagstaff.az.gov/streaming
mailto:Jose@ACM-JVT.com


Zoning Code Map Amendment
Whispering Winds Historic Sign

Landmark Overlay

For more information about this proposal, contact Jose Alvarado, at jose@acm-jvt.com or 928-779-6944.

To submit a written comment to the City regarding this case, please contact: Mark Reavis Heritage Preservation Officer, at 
mark.reavis@flagstaffaz.gov or (928) 213-2633

Request: The Whispering Winds Historic Route 66 sign is proposed for restoration.  
In order to fully restore the sign under the Flagstaff Zoning Code, a Landmark 
Overlay is required to protect the historic resource. 
Proposal: A small scale zoning map amendment is proposed to designate the 
landmark overlay on portion of parcel  APN 104-05-005 at the address 992 E. 
Route 66. 

Posting Date: January 12, 2021

Planning and Zoning Commission Hearing
Wednesday, January 27, 2021 4pm

City Council Hearing
Tuesday, February 16, 2021 3pm

All Hearings will be held virtually on the City streaming platform
https: www.flagstaff.az.gov/streaming on the Live Conference tab
Contact Mark Reavis, Heritage Preservation Officer for a meeting 

link or if you would like to comment at 
mark.reavis@flagstaffaz.gov or call at 928-213-2633





































S:\Community Development\Planning & Development\CD Memo - Temp.doc

Date: 12/22/2020

To: Tiffany Antol, Planning Director and Alaxandra Pucciarelli, Planning 
Manager, Community Development

From: Mark A. Reavis, Heritage Preservation Officer, AICP, NCARB

Subject: Waive 2nd Public Neighborhood Meeting for Whispering Winds 
Motel Sign Restoration, Landmark Overlay Map Amendment.

Please Waive the 2nd public Neighborhood Meeting requirement of the 
Whispering Winds Motel Sign Restoration for the Landmark Overlay Map 
Amendment. The first meeting was advertised in the paper, the sign posted, and 
adjoining neighbors notified. The Heritage Preservation Commission conducted 
the formal public hearing on Wednesday October 21st, 2020 and no public 
comment was received. 

I feel that a 2nd meeting would not yield any additional comment since the 
Historic Landmark Overlay is so specific and narrow focused and isolated to the 
sign only. I believe that the intent of the Neighborhood meeting has been met.

The historic overlay allows for the historic restoration of a unique Route 66 
feature by reestablishing the upper portion of the sign that would otherwise not 
be allowed by our sign code. The sign restoration is an important aspect of the 
historic motel’s rehabilitation underway and its promotion.

Mark Reavis_________________________ date: 12/22/2020

HERITAGE PRESERVATION

MEMORANDUM



S:\Community Development\Planning & Development\CD Memo - Temp.doc

Approval

12/23/2020

X Tiffany Antol
Tiffany Antol
Planning Director
Signed by: Tiffany Antol













211 West Aspen Avenue, Flagstaff, Arizona 86001
Main (928) 213-2000 Arizona Relay Service 7-1-1 www.flagstaff.az.gov

Dear Property Owner;

RE: NOTICE OF A PUBLIC HEARINGS for DESIGNATION OF LOCAL 
LANDMARK OVERLAY for a HISTORIC SIGN

The purpose of this letter is to notify adjacent property owners that the Flagstaff Planning 
and Zoning Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Wednesday, January 27, 2021 at 
4:00 p.m. to consider the proposed amendment to the official City of Flagstaff zoning 
map to designate a historic Route 66 sign as a local landmark with the signs full historic 
restoration. This to be followed with a City Council meeting for a public hearing on the 
same matter for Tuesday, February 16, 2021 at 3:00 PM.

The sign is located at the Whispering Winds Motel (922 E Route 66) and is considered a 
critical component of the historic Route 66 corridor. A significant portion of the sign 
remains at its original location. The upper portion of the sign is missing and is to be 
reestablished as a component of a full restoration. The requirements of the Flagstaff 
Historic Façade and Sign Grant Program and determinations by the Heritage Preservation 
Commission mandate that the sign is restored to its original condition and that the
restoration is protected by a Landmark designation. Restoration of the sign requires 
divergence from the sign code as allowed per Heritage Preservation provisions in the 
Municipal Code 10-50.100.020 Applicability, A. Applicability, 4. Heritage signs in 
landmark zones are governed by the ordinance designating the landmark overlay and its 
related guidelines. (Refer to Division 10-30.30, Heritage Preservation.)

The location and mapping of the Landmark Overlay is being described by the legal 
description of the land; however, the conditions recommended are only applicable to the 
sign itself. The site currently consists of land owned by WW.66 LLC, 6164 E. Abineau 
Canyon Dr. Flagstaff AZ. The point location of the sign is located in approximately .82 
acres, Coconino County Assessor’s Parcel Number 104-05-005, situated at Sixteenth: 
NW Quarter: NE Section:22 Township:21 Range: 07E PT of NE4 Comm ATN4, located 
at 922 E Route 66, City of Flagstaff, Coconino County, Arizona.

Interested parties may file comments in writing regarding the proposed amendment by 
emailing CDFrontCounter@flagstaffaz.gov for the Planning and Zoning Commission and 
PublicComments@flagstaffaz.gov for City Council. In addition to written comments you 
may join the meeting remotely and speak for up to 3 minutes by getting the link from 
Mark Reavis, additional contact information below. Maps and information regarding the 

City of Flagstaff



211 West Aspen Avenue, Flagstaff, Arizona 86001
Main (928) 213-2000 Arizona Relay Service 7-1-1 www.flagstaff.az.gov

proposed amendment are available at the City of Flagstaff, Planning and Development 
Services Section, 211 West Aspen Avenue.

Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council meetings are held virtually in the 
Conference Room of City Hall, 211 West Aspen Avenue, Flagstaff, Arizona. For an 
invitation to join the meeting, email Mark Reavis or follow the instructions posted at 
http://www.flagstaff.az.gov/streaming

Sincerely,

Mark Reavis

Mark Reavis, AICP, NCARB
Heritage Preservation Office/Neighborhood Planner
City of Flagstaff, AZ

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT 
Mark Reavis, Heritage Preservation Officer, Planning & Development Services, 211 
West Aspen Avenue, Flagstaff, Arizona 86001 (928) 213-2633 or email  
Mark.Reavis@flagstaffaz.gov or

Owner Representative: Jose R. Alvarado | Director of Sales | Ascend Capital 
Management Phone: (928) 779-6944 | Fax: (928) 774-3990 | Email: Jose@ACM-
JVT.com











Whispering Winds

VACANCY

AIR CONDITIONED
TELEPHONE
CABLE TV

M O T E L

Whispering Winds

VACANCY

AIR CONDITIONED
TELEPHONE
CABLE TV

M O T E L

Proposed

Existing

1214 W. Kaibab, Flagstaff, Arizona 86004
(928) 779-2008  /  Fax...779-2038  /  email@noaz.com

page:

NORTHERN ARIZONA SIGNS
1
3 © 2018 - F & N Enterprises, Inc. d.b.a. Northern Arizona Signs. Fabrication information shown here is the exclusive property of F & N Enterprises, Inc. d.b.a. Northern Arizona Signs and may not be used for fabrication by anyone without 

authorization from an officer of F & N / Northern Arizona Signs.

WHISPERING WINDS MOTEL SIGN REFURB.
job: NZ13784
date: 8/3/2020
rev.: 00/00/00
rev.: 
drawn by: KA

Monument Refurb. 
Elevation | Scale: 3/16"=1'-0"

Monument Refurb. 
Rendering | Scale: NTS

Reference Photo Only | Scale: NTS

Refurb One (1) D/F Existing, Illuminated
Monument Sign

New aluminum cabinets with printed graphics.
Painted base and top structure.
Materials, colors and graphics to be finalized.

Paint existing vertical structure
colors TBD
(non-illuminated)

Paint existing base structure
color TBD

Vacancy sign
(LED illumination)

New aluminum cabinet with 
direct print graphics
(face design to be finalized,
(LED illumination)

New aluminum cabinet with 
direct print graphics
(face design to be finalized,
(LED illumination)

OPTION 1

14'-0"

4'-0"

4'-0"

12'-1"

18'-2" ±

10'-6 3/4"±

2'-2"

7"±

8"

3'-10"±

2'-2"

28'-8"±
MAX

HEIGHT



VACANCY

AIR CONDITIONED
TELEPHONE
CABLE TV

Whispering WindsWhispering Winds

Proposed

Existing

VACANCY

AIR CONDITIONED
TELEPHONE
CABLE TV

Whispering WindsWhispering Winds

1214 W. Kaibab, Flagstaff, Arizona 86004
(928) 779-2008  /  Fax...779-2038  /  email@noaz.com

page:

NORTHERN ARIZONA SIGNS
2
3 © 2018 - F & N Enterprises, Inc. d.b.a. Northern Arizona Signs. Fabrication information shown here is the exclusive property of F & N Enterprises, Inc. d.b.a. Northern Arizona Signs and may not be used for fabrication by anyone without 

authorization from an officer of F & N / Northern Arizona Signs.

WHISPERING WINDS MOTEL SIGN REFURB.
job: NZ13784
date: 8/3/2020
rev.: 00/00/00
rev.: 
drawn by: KA

Monument Refurb. 
Elevation | Scale: 3/16"=1'-0"

Monument Refurb. 
Rendering | Scale: NTS

Reference Photo Only | Scale: NTS

Refurb One (1) D/F Existing, Illuminated
Monument Sign

New aluminum cabinets with printed graphics.
Painted base and top structure.
Materials, colors and graphics to be finalized.

Paint existing vertical structure
colors TBD
(non-illuminated)

Paint existing base structure
color TBD

Vacancy sign
(LED illumination)

New aluminum cabinet with 
direct print graphics
(face design to be finalized,
(LED illumination)

New aluminum cabinet with 
direct print graphics
(face design to be finalized,
(LED illumination)

OPTION 2

14'-0"

4'-0"

4'-0"

12'-1"

18'-2" ±

10'-6 3/4"±

7"±

3'-10"±

2'-2"

28'-8"±
MAX

HEIGHT

2'-2"

8"



VACANCY

AIR CONDITIONED
TELEPHONE
CABLE TV

Whispering Winds

Proposed

Existing

1214 W. Kaibab, Flagstaff, Arizona 86004
(928) 779-2008  /  Fax...779-2038  /  email@noaz.com

page:

NORTHERN ARIZONA SIGNS
3
3 © 2018 - F & N Enterprises, Inc. d.b.a. Northern Arizona Signs. Fabrication information shown here is the exclusive property of F & N Enterprises, Inc. d.b.a. Northern Arizona Signs and may not be used for fabrication by anyone without 

authorization from an officer of F & N / Northern Arizona Signs.

WHISPERING WINDS MOTEL SIGN REFURB.
job: NZ13784
date: 8/3/2020
rev.: 00/00/00
rev.: 
drawn by: KA

Monument Refurb. 
Elevation | Scale: 3/16"=1'-0"

Monument Refurb. 
Rendering | Scale: NTS

Reference Photo Only | Scale: NTS

Refurb One (1) D/F Existing, Illuminated
Monument Sign

New aluminum cabinets with printed graphics.
Painted base and top structure.
Materials, colors and graphics to be finalized.

Paint existing vertical structure
colors TBD
(non-illuminated)

Paint existing base structure
color TBD

Vacancy sign
(LED illumination)

New aluminum cabinet with 
direct print graphics
(face design to be finalized,
(LED illumination)

New aluminum cabinet with 
direct print graphics
(face design to be finalized,
(LED illumination)

OPTION 3

14'-0"

4'-0"

4'-0"

12'-1"

18'-2" ±

10'-6 3/4"±

7"±

3'-10"±

2'-2"

28'-8"±
MAX

HEIGHT

2'-2"

8"

































CITY OF FLAGSTAFF HERITAGE PRESERVATION COMMISSION
STAFF REPORT

Public Hearing/Neighborhood Meeting DATE:  10/8/2020  
MEETING DATE:  October 21 ,2020

REPORT BY: Mark Reavis, AICP, NCARB

Whispering Winds/ Route 66 - Landmark Overlay Zoning Map Amendment

PROPERTY INFORMATION:
Address:  922 E. Route 66
Assessor's Parcel Number:  104-05-005
Property Owner:  WW66. LLC,6164, Abineau Canyon Dr, Flagstaff AZ
Applicant:  Jose R. Alvarado, Director of Sales, Ascend Capital Management
City Staff:  Mark Reavis, HPO

BACKGROUND
The HPC has reviewed and approved the application for a historic sign & facade grant as a $10,000 
matching grant for the full restoration of the Whispering Winds Motel Sign. The HPO has reviewed a 
submission by a sign company that accurately reestablishes the missing upper components of the 
historic sign that remains. The applicant will confirm that the project will comply with that HPO review 
with the sign contractor that is selected.

PREVIOUS HPC DECISIONS
HPC has reviewed and approved the grant with HPO follow up on compliance.

REQUEST
Conduct Public Hearing to meet the Neighborhood Meeting requirement for a Landmark Overlay 
Zoning Map Amendment for the purpose of restoring the historic Route 66 sign at 922 E Route 66 
(Whispering Winds Motel).

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Conduct Public Hearing that serves as Neighborhood meeting requirement. Receive public comment, 
close hearing.

DISCUSSION
Questions?

BASIS OF REPORT
Requirements for Grant compliance and public notification. 

INFORMATION
Advertisement was published and property owners within 300 foot were notified by letter.



I. Landmark Overlay Zoning Map Amendment Findings
Landmark Overlay Zoning Map Amendments shall be evaluated based on the following findings:

A. Finding #1: Significance and Integrity of the Proposed Landmark

The eligibility of the Motel for the National Register of Historic Places and specifics of the signs note 
its significant status. Review of the integrity of the remains of the sign by HPO City staff show that 
the property meets the findings for the Landmark Overlay.

B. Finding #2: Conformance and Consistency with the Regional Plan and applicable Specific Plans

The proposed amendment must be found to be consistent with and in conformance with the goals 
and policies of the General Plan and any applicable specific plans.  If the application is not consistent 
with the General Plan, and any other applicable specific plan, the applicable plan must be amended 
in compliance with the procedures established in Chapter 11-10 of the City Code (Title 11: General 
Plans and Subdivisions) prior to considering the proposed amendment.

i. General Plan/Flagstaff Regional Plan (FRP 2030) Process and Analysis Summary
The adoption of a Landmark Overlay for the Whispering Winds Historic Route 66 Motel Sign.
The Regional Plan’s policies related to Historic Preservation supports the preservation and 
restoration of historic buildings and architectural elements such as signs and the formal 
recognition of landmarks. This proposed Zoning Map amendment supports the 
preservation of the Motel as the caretaker of an irreplaceable community asset 
associated with Route 66 with the acknowledgment of the restoration of it sign in both 
the preservation and restoration of the resource and adaptive reuse to support the 
continues utilization of the motel. 

ii. Applicable General Plan Goals and Policies
As part of its review, staff identified relevant Regional Plan Goals and Policies that could be 
applied to support or not support the proposed Zoning Map Amendment.  The following is a 
discussion of how the project generally meets or conflicts with goals and policies in each chapter.

a. Community Character (Scenic Resources and Natural Setting, Heritage Preservation, 
Community Design, and Arts, Sciences and Education)

Policy CC.2.2. Formally recognize heritage resources through designation as local landmarks 
and historic districts.

Policy CC.2.4. Support restoration and rehabilitation of historic housing, buildings, structures, 
and neighborhoods.

Policy CC.2.10. Educate the community and developers on the benefits of adaptive reuse and 
create policies to incentivize the reuse of historic buildings to maintain their integrity.

Policy CC.2.11. Assist businesses and residents who are caretakers of historic resources, 
maximize the economic value of their property without damaging the integrity of the historic 
resource.

b. Growth Areas & Land Use (Reinvestment, Greenfield, Urban Area, Suburban Area, Rural 
Area, Employment Area, Special Planning Area, and Activity Centers)



Policy LU.10.3. Value the Historic Neighborhoods established around downtown by 
maintaining and improving their highly walkable character, transit accessibility, diverse mix 
of land uses, and historic building form.
Policy LU.11.5. Encourage adaptive re-use of historic structures for a variety of commercial 
spaces and housing options.

Preservation of the historic Whispering Winds sign related to the Route 66 Motel itself 
supports the character of the community and the use and reuse of the historic structures 
on the property.

ATTACHMENT 

Post card image

Existing Sign Condition



CITY OF FLAGSTAFF HERITAGE PRESERVATION COMMISSION
STAFF REPORT

Amendment to Previous Staff Report
DATE:  1/29/2021

MEETING DATE:  February 3rd, 2021
REPORT BY: Mark Reavis, AICP, NCARB

PZ-20-00141-02
Whispering Winds/ Route 66 - Landmark Overlay Zoning Map Amendment

PROPERTY INFORMATION:
Address:  922 E. Route 66
Assessor's Parcel Number: 104-05-005
Property Owner:  WW66. LLC,6164, Abineau Canyon Dr, Flagstaff AZ
Applicant:  Jose R. Alvarado, Director of Sales, Ascend Capital Management
City Staff:  Mark Reavis, HPO

BACKGROUND
The HPC has previously reviewed and approved the application for a historic sign & facade grant as a 
$10,000 matching grant for the full restoration of the Whispering Winds Motel Sign. The HPO is 
currently reviewing a sign permit application that conforms to the Historic Facades and Sign Grant 
and is seeking confirmation of conformance from the commission. 

PREVIOUS HPC DECISIONS
HPC has reviewed and approved the grant with HPO follow up on compliance.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Verify that the design graphics, sign permit and narrative are in compliance with the Historic Facades 
and Signs Grant Guidelines. (See sign permit application)

Make a motion to recommend approval of the Landmark Overlay zoning application (PZ-20-00141-02) to 
the Planning and Zoning Commission based on the finding that:

∑ the criteria of Flagstaff City Code 10-30.30.040.C.3 were met on October 21, 2020, and
∑ that the application meets the findings of Flagstaff City Code 10-30.30.040.E Individual Signs of 

Historic or Cultural Significance

DISCUSSION
At the August 2020 commission meeting, the commission approved a grant for the sign conditioned 
on approval of a Landmark Overlay. Based on the direction provided at the review of the grant, the 
HPO has a sign permit application and wants to verify that it matches what was approved previously.

At the October 2020 public hearing that occurred in lieu of a neighborhood meeting, the heritage 
Preservation Commission did not make a motion on the Landmark Overlay application.  Though the 
commission indicated that the previous unanimous approval of the grant application was to move 



forward, a specific motion on the Landmark Overlay application is needed before the Planning and 
Zoning Commission can consider the application.

This special meeting is being conducted to give the opportunity for a correct motion to be made and 
a recommendation be provided to the Planning and Zoning Commission.

The Minutes and attachments from the October 2020 meeting can be reviewed at: 
http://cityweb.flagstaffaz.gov/agendaquick/agenda_publish.cfm?id=&mt=ALL&get_month=10&get
_year=2020&dsp=min&seq=1111

Staff has also attached the most up to date rendering of the proposed sign to verify that the work 
done by the Heritage Preservation officer is carrying out previous Commission direction faithfully.

BASIS OF REPORT
Flagstaff City Code 10-30.30.040.C.3

The Historic Preservation Officer’s recommendation shall be transmitted to the Heritage 
Preservation Commission in the form of a staff report prior to a scheduled public meeting. The 
staff report shall include the following:

a.    An evaluation of the consistency and conformance of the proposed amendment with the goals 
of the General Plan and any applicable specific plans; and

b.    A recommendation on whether the proposed landmark property designation should be 
granted, granted with conditions to mitigate any anticipated impacts, or denied.

10-30.30.040.E Individual Signs of Historic or Cultural Significance

1.   Signs which may be unusual, significant, or meaningful to the City streetscape and the 
City’s history may be worthy of special recognition and may be designated as a landmark 
property in accordance with the provisions of this division if they meet the following criteria:

a.    The sign has been in continuous existence at its present location for not less than 50 years;

b.    The sign is of exemplary technology, craftsmanship or design for the period in which it 
was constructed; uses historic sign materials or means of illumination; and/or is unique in that 
it demonstrates extraordinary aesthetic quality, creativity, or innovation;

c.    The sign is structurally safe or is capable of being made so without substantially altering 
its historical character or significance;

d.    If the sign has been altered, it must be restorable to its historic function and appearance; 
and

e.    The sign complies with movement, bracing, and illumination requirements contained in 
Section 10-50.100.050(D), Structure and Installation.



1

Sara Dechter

From: Mark Reavis
Sent: Saturday, January 30, 2021 9:43 AM
To: Sara Dechter
Subject: FW: Whispering Winds Sign Permit

Email from Jose to have HPO represent client and sign. 
 

Mark A. Reavis, AICP, NCARB 
Heritage Preservation Officer/Neighborhood Planner 
Planning & Development Services, 211 W. Aspen Av. 
Community Development, Flagstaff AZ 86001 
Phone/message: (928) 213‐2633 
Mark.Reavis@flagstaffaz.gov  ww.flagstaff.az.gov 
 

From: Jose Alvarado <jose@acm‐jvt.com>  
Sent: Friday, January 22, 2021 11:42 AM 
To: Mark Reavis <mark.reavis@flagstaffaz.gov> 
Subject: Re: Whispering Winds Sign Permit 
 
Good Afternoon,  
 
I authorize Mark Reavis to sign a sign permit on behalf of the Whispering Winds for the Whispering Winds Historic Sign 
Restoration at 922 W Route 66 Flagstaff, Arizona.  
 
Thank you,  
  
 
Jose R. Alvarado | Director of Sales | Ascend Capital Management | Days Hotel Flagstaff | Travelodge Route 66 | Econolodge 
University | The Northern Pines Restaurant | Mobile: (928) 310‐9487 | Phone: (928) 779‐6944 | Fax: (928) 774‐3990 | Email: 
Jose@ACM‐JVT.com 
 
 
On Fri, Jan 22, 2021 at 11:21 AM Mark Reavis <mark.reavis@flagstaffaz.gov> wrote: 

Can you mention the motel Whispering Winds Historic Sign Restoration 922 W Route 66 

  

Mark A. Reavis, AICP, NCARB 

Heritage Preservation Officer/Neighborhood Planner 

Planning & Development Services, 211 W. Aspen Av. 

Community Development, Flagstaff AZ 86001 



2

Phone/message: (928) 213‐2633 

Mark.Reavis@flagstaffaz.gov  ww.flagstaff.az.gov 

  

From: jose@acm‐jvt.com <jose@acm‐jvt.com>  
Sent: Friday, January 22, 2021 11:19 AM 
To: Mark Reavis <mark.reavis@flagstaffaz.gov> 
Cc: Sara Dechter <SDechter@flagstaffaz.gov> 
Subject: RE: Whispering Winds Sign Permit 

  

Good Afternoon Mark,  

  

Do you need an email stating that you are authorized to sign a sign permit? I authorize Mark Reavis to sign a permit on behalf of our 
company.  

  

Thank you,  

Jose R. Alvarado | Director of Sales & Marketing | Ascend Capital Management | Days Hotel Flagstaff | Econolodge Flagstaff Route 66 | 
Whispering Winds Historic Route 66 Motel | Comfort Inn Near Grand Canyon | The Northern Pines Restaurant | Dirty Birdies Sports Bar & Grill 
| Ski Haus Flagstaff | LinkedIn Profile | Mobile: (928) 310-9487 | Phone: (928) 779-6944 | Fax: (928) 774-3990 | Email: Jose@ACM-JVT.com 

  

From: Mark Reavis <mark.reavis@flagstaffaz.gov>  
Sent: Friday, January 22, 2021 10:59 AM 
To: Jose Alvarado <jose@acm‐jvt.com> 
Cc: Sara Dechter <SDechter@flagstaffaz.gov> 
Subject: Whispering Winds Sign Permit 

  

Jose; can you send me a quick email that gives me authorization to sign a sign permit…. ASAP 



3

  

Mark A. Reavis, AICP, NCARB 

Heritage Preservation Officer/Neighborhood Planner 

Planning & Development Services, 211 W. Aspen Av. 

Community Development, Flagstaff AZ 86001 

Phone/message: (928) 213‐2633 

Mark.Reavis@flagstaffaz.gov  ww.flagstaff.az.gov 

  





2/6/2021 Minutes

https://cityweb.flagstaffaz.gov/agendaquick/public/publish/print_minutes.cfm?seq=540&id=&mode=External&reloaded=true&CFID=676598&CFTOKE… 1/2

DRAFT MINUTES
HERITAGE PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY 
FEBRUARY 3, 2021

 COUNCIL CHAMBERS
211 WEST ASPEN AVENUE

             11:30 A.M.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact
Tammy Bishop 928-213-2611 (or 774-5281 TDD).  

Notification at least 48 hours in advance will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements. 

The video will be available on the City's website 
(https://www.flagstaff.az.gov/1461/Streaming-City-Council-Meetings) 

 
 

        
1. Call to Order 11:31am
 
2. Roll Call

NOTE: One or more Commission Members may be in attendance telephonically or by other technological means.
 
DAVID HAYWARD,Chair 
JERRY MCLAUGHLIN, Vice Chair 
EMILY DALE

JILL HOUGH 
CAITLIN KELLY 
CHARLES WEBBER

 
3. Public Comment 

At this time, any member of the public may address the Commission on any subject within their jurisdiction that is not
scheduled before the Commission on that day. Due to Open Meeting Laws, the Commission cannot discuss or act on
items presented during this portion of the agenda. To address the Commission on an item that is on the agenda,
please wait for the Chair to call for Public Comment at the time the item is heard.

 
4.

PUBLIC HEARING

 
A. Whispering Winds Sign Design Review Clarification & updated Staff Report Amendment 

Address:  922 E Route 66 
Assessor's Parcel Number:  104-05-005 
Property Owner: WW66 LLC   
Applicant: HPO on behalf of owner and Jose R Alvarado, Director of Sales, Ascend
Capital Management  
City Staff:  Mark Reavis

Review amended staff report and revised information with updated narrative and design submission 

Verify that the design graphics, sign permit and narrative are in compliance with the
Historic Facades and Signs Grant Guidelines
Recommend approval of the Landmark Overlay zoning application (PZ-20-00141-02) to
the Planning and Zoning Commission based on the finding that:

the criteria of Flagstaff City Code 10-30.30.040.C.3 were met on October 21, 2020,
and
that the application meets the findings of 10-30.30.040.E Individual Signs of
Historic or Cultural Significance

Ask that staff request a continuation to a date certain of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing currently
scheduled for February 24, 2021 and review an amended application at the regular February 17, 2021 Heritage
Preservation Commission Meeting. 

  

https://www.flagstaff.az.gov/1461/Streaming-City-Council-Meetings


2/6/2021 Minutes

https://cityweb.flagstaffaz.gov/agendaquick/public/publish/print_minutes.cfm?seq=540&id=&mode=External&reloaded=true&CFID=676598&CFTOKE… 2/2

This project was previously approved in August for a Historic Facade and Sign Grant. A public hearing was conducted
by the HPC in October for a required public meeting component for a Zoning Map Amendment application. 

 
 Confusion on which sign submission was approved for the grant. McLaughlin, Hayward,

verify that Option 2 from #1 sign company is the correct sign for the grant. Asked if any
disagreeed, none spoke.

 

 Moved by David Hayward, seconded by Jerry McLaughlin Make a motion to recommend approval of the Landmark
Overlay zoning application (PZ-20-00141-02) to the Planning and Zoning Commission based on the finding that:

 the criteria of Flagstaff City Code 10-30.30.040.C.3 were met on October 21, 2020, and
 that the application meets the findings of Flagstaff City Code 10-30.30.040.E Individual Signs of Historic or
Cultural Significance

 Vote: 6 - 0 - Unanimously
 
 Moved by David Hayward, seconded by Jerry McLaughlin Amend the motion to approve that to include the finding 

that the design graphics, sign permit and narrative presented at this meeting are in compliance with the Historic
Facades and Signs Grant Guidelines

 Vote: 6 - 0 - Unanimously
 
5. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS TO/FROM COMMISSION MEMBERS
 
6. ADJOURNMENT
 
 Adjourn at 11:44am
 

 

CERTIFICATE OF POSTING OF NOTICE

The undersigned hereby certifies that a copy of the foregoing notice was duly posted at Flagstaff City Hall on                      ,
at                a.m./p.m. This notice has been posted on the City's website and can be downloaded at www.flagstaff.az.gov. 

Dated this               day of                                       , 2020. 

__________________________________________ 
Sara Dechter, Comprehensive Planning Manager                                            

http://www.flagstaff.az.gov/


   
Planning & Zoning Commission 6. A.        
Meeting Date: 02/24/2021  
From: Dan Symer, Zoning Code Manager

Information
TITLE
Appointments: Incentive Policy for Affordable Housing and related Zoning Code Update Workgroup

STAFF RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Staff is requesting that the Planning and Zoning Commission appoint two Commission
members to a workgroup that will be utilized to provide recommendations to the Housing and Planning
and Zoning Commissions on updates to the Incentive Policy for Affordable Housing (IPAH) and related
modifications to the Zoning Code.

Attachments
Staff Memo 
Attachment 1 
Attachment 2 
Attachment 3 



Community Development Department
Planning and Development Services

Date: February 9, 2021
To: Planning and Zoning Commission
From: Dan Symer, AICP, Zoning Code Manager

Jennifer Mikelson, Housing Analyst
Through: Alaxandra Pucciarelli, Current Planning Manager
RE: Planning and Zoning Commission Appointments

I. Request:

Staff is requesting that the Planning and Zoning Commission appoint two Commission members to a 
workgroup that will be utilized to provide recommendations to the Housing and Planning and Zoning 
Commissions on updates to the Incentive Policy for Affordable Housing (IPAH) and related 
modifications to the Zoning Code.

II. Background:

The purpose of the Flagstaff IPAH (Adopted in October 2009 (Attachment 1)) and the Zoning Code 
Affordable Housing Incentives (Adopted in November 2011 (Attachment 2)) is to foster the 
preservation and production of permanently affordable housing units within Flagstaff). To achieve 
this objective, the IPAH and the Zoning Code seeks to:

∑ Provide viable incentives to stimulate the development of permanently affordable housing.

∑ Provide viable incentives to stimulate the rehabilitation and redevelopment of permanently 
affordable housing.

∑ Provide viable incentives to stimulate the development of permanently affordable housing on 
vacant and redeveloped lots in new and existing neighborhoods.

The incentives available may be summarized in two primary categories. These categories are: 1) fee 
waivers/reimbursements and expedited review of development applications; and, 2) Zoning Code 
regulatory incentive (density bonuses, modified requirements and parking and resource protection 
reductions).

III. Project Summary:

Beginning in March 2021, the Housing and Planning and Development Services staff (Jennifer 
Mikelson, Housing Analyst, and Dan Symer, Zoning Code Manager) will begin updating the IPAH and 
the Zoning Code incentives for providing affordable housing. In summary, the purpose of the project 
is to modify the IPAH and the Zoning Code incentives to reflect the current economic, market, and 
development conditions, and the diversifying demographic needs for affordable housing. The process 
will be coordinated through a workgroup consisting of the Housing and Planning and Zoning 
Commission members. In addition to the workgroup meetings, housing developers and practitioners
will be interviewed to obtain their input on the existing policy and code regulations and suggested 



modifications. The workgroup meetings will be open to the public and staff.  Based on the meeting 
topics, City staff most familiar with the regulations will be asked to attend the meetings.  A summary 
of the Project Objectives, Problem Statements, and Scope of Work are included in Attachment 3.  

IV. Project Timeline:

The timeline for the project is projected as follows:

∑ March 2021 through September 2021

- Review the existing Incentive Policy for Affordable Housing and Zoning Code, suggested 
revisions, draft concept policies, implementation direction, and code amendments

- Receive public comment on the existing Incentive Policy for Affordable Housing and Zoning 
Code Amendments and suggested revisions

- Meetings and interviews with staff, housing developers, and industry 
practitioners pertaining to existing Incentive Policy for Affordable Housing and Zoning Code 
Amendments and suggested revisions

∑ September 2021 and November 2021

- Public, Housing and Planning and Zoning Commissions, and City Council review of 
the draft Incentive Policy for Affordable Housing and Zoning Code Amendments

∑ December 2021 and February 2022

- Final review and adoption of the updated Incentive Policy for Affordable Housing and Zoning 
Code Amendments

Attachments:
1. Incentive Policy for Affordable Housing
2. Zoning Code Affordable Housing Incentives
3. Project Objectives, Problem Statements, and Scope of Work



 
INCENTIVE POLICY FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                

 

 

 

 

 

PREPARED BY: 

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF’S HOUSING SECTION 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIVISION 

OCTOBER 2009 

2 1 1  W e s t  A s p e n  A v e .  •  t e l e p h o n e :  9 2 8 . 7 7 9 . 7 6 5 0  e x t . 7 2 3 1  •  f a x :  9 2 8 . 7 7 9 . 7 6 8 4  •  w w w . f l a g s t a f f . a z . g o v  



C i t y  o f  F l a g s t a f f   I n c e n t i v e  P o l i c y  f o r  A f f o r d a b l e  H o u s i n g   

 
1 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

1. OVERVIEW ………………………...……………...……………………….…...…….……………..... 2 

2. DEFINITIONS ……………………………………..………………………..….……….….……….… 3 

3. IPAH STANDARDS ……………….……………..………………….……....………….…………. 7 

4. IPAH PROCESS …………………………………………………….….……………………………. 10 

5. INCENTIVES  

5.1 Fee Waivers ……………………………………………………...…...….…….….……….. 11 

5.2 Defer Development Fees for Market Rate Units ………….……...………….…………. 11 

5.3 Fees Eligibility List ………………………..………...…….……….…..………..………… 12 

5.4 Expedited Review …………………………………………………..…….…….………… 13 

5.5 Regulatory Incentives – Planned Affordable Option …………..……………………... 14 

5.6 Land Donation – Tax Deduction …………………..…..……..…..……...….…………… 16 

5.7 Public Improvement Districts ………………...…………….……….....…..……………. 16 

5.8 In-lieu of Affordable Housing Contribution ………….……..……….…..…….………. 16 

APPENDIX A - Area Median Income Chart ………………………..………………..……….…….. 17 

 



 

 

 
C i t y  o f  F l a g s t a f f   I n c e n t i v e  P o l i c y  f o r  A f f o r d a b l e  H o u s i n g   

2 

1. OVERVIEW 

Decent, safe and affordable housing has been established by the City Council at one of its top priorities.  The 
City Council has adopted policies that aim to further the goal of housing that is affordable within Flagstaff.   

The  Incentive Policy  for Affordable Housing  (IPAH)  incentivizes developments  that commit  to permanently 

affordable housing units.   If a developer desires  to  take advantage of  the  incentives offered under  the IPAH 

document,  they would need  to provide  rental and/or ownership opportunities  that have  resale and  rent  re‐

strictions placed on the units for the intended affordable housing population.  This document provides a de-
tailed description of the incentives offered to developers wishing to assist the community in addressing the 
need for affordable housing in Flagstaff. 

In addition, the 2001 Regional Land Use and Transportation Plan established a series of goals and strategies to 
guide the development of decent and affordable housing.  Further emphasizing the need for decent housing 
for the community, the 2005 Community Housing Policy Task Force, the 2006 Comprehensive Plan, and the 
2008 Community Housing and Sustainability NEXUS Study (NEXUS Study) all put forth strategies to aid in 
the preservation and development of attainable housing.   Specifically, it was recommended that the 2001 Af-
fordable Housing Set-Aside Policy be updated to reflect the market changes and to further incentivize the de-
velopment and preservation of housing that is attainable to citizens of Flagstaff.   

The City of Flagstaff Incentive Policy for Affordable Housing (IPAH), formerly known as the Affordable Hous-
ing Set-Aside Policy is designed to foster the preservation and production of affordable housing units de-
signed for those who live in Flagstaff.  Encouraging the preservation and production of permanently afforda-
ble units and facilities intended for the Flagstaff community will assist in narrowing the deficit of all types of 
housing for households earning up to 150% of the Area Median Income (AMI).  Affordable housing in Flag-
staff must meet the needs and applicable regulations of the federal government, Arizona Revised Statues, the 
City of Flagstaff, and all other appropriate regulating entities. 

The City of Flagstaff will continue to work with developers and builders of single-family, multi-family, and 
mixed-use developments that voluntarily choose to meet the IPAH criteria.  As this is a defined need within 
the community, as delineated in the 2008 NEXUS Study, City staff encourages developers to review the incen-
tives presented within this document, which support the creation of affordable housing within residential and 
mixed-use developments.   

IPAH designates the Housing Section as the lead agency on housing policy issues and to foster partnerships 
with neighborhoods, non-profit housing providers, and the home-building industry to develop, finance, reha-
bilitate, relocate, and implement IPAH in the City of Flagstaff.   

IPAH allows for incentives to be provided to the developer to create permanently affordable units within a 
development that meet the definition of Affordable Housing; thus requiring the Housing Section to catalogue 
additional incentives that may be advantageous to all parties identified during the review, construction, and 



 

 

 
C i t y  o f  F l a g s t a f f   I n c e n t i v e  P o l i c y  f o r  A f f o r d a b l e  H o u s i n g   

3 

inspection of housing developments and it requires collaborations among City divisions in implementing the-
se suggested improvements.   

The City of Flagstaff’s Incentive Policy for Affordable Housing seeks to: 

• Provide viable incentives to stimulate the development of permanently affordable housing. 
• Provide viable incentives to stimulate the rehabilitation and redevelopment of permanently affordable 

housing. 
• Provide viable incentives to stimulate the development of permanently affordable housing on vacant and 

redeveloped lots in new and existing neighborhoods. 

2.  DEFINITIONS 

Affordability Controls:  Affordability controls are mechanisms used to ensure that the sale or rental prices of 

the set‐aside units stay attainable to households making a certain percentage of Area Median Income (AMI). 

These controls remain in effect for a specified period of time.  

Affordable Housing:  Affordable Housing is defined as housing or shelter that is developed or re‐developed 

for households earning no more than 150% of the AMI for ownership and no more than 100% AMI for rentals.  

In order to avoid being cost burdened, households should not spend more than 30% of their gross income on 

housing. 

Affordable Residential Uses:    “Affordable Residential Uses”  in  the City of Flagstaff’s Zoning Code  (LDC) 

should be replaced by the term Affordable Housing. 

Area Median  Income  (AMI): Area Median  Income  is an  income  level determined by  the United States De‐

partment of Housing and Urban Development based on a variety of factors and representing wages and earn‐

ings in the community.  Area Median Income is relative to family size and community dynamics.  The chart, as 

referenced  in Exhibit A, will be updated by  the Housing Section Staff on an annual basis, as published by 

HUD.   

Covenant:  A covenant is a type of contract in which the covenantor makes a promise to a covenantee to do or 

not do some action.  In real property law, the term real covenant is used for conditions tied to the use of land.  

A ʺcovenant running with the landʺ imposes duties or restrictions upon the use of that land regardless of the 

owner. 

Deed:  A deed is a legal document signed by the seller of the property that transfers the title of the property 

from the seller to the buyer. 



 

 

 
C i t y  o f  F l a g s t a f f   I n c e n t i v e  P o l i c y  f o r  A f f o r d a b l e  H o u s i n g   

4 

Deed Restriction:   A deed restriction is a restriction or requirement that must be met by both the buyer and 

the seller before the property can be transferred to the buyer.  Affordability controls provide that the property 

can only be rented or sold to households that meet the income eligibility criteria identified.  Many municipali‐

ties use deed restrictions to enforce affordability controls.  

Density Bonus:   A density bonus  is a developer  incentive.    It  is a percentage of units  that  the municipality 

permits the developer to construct above and beyond what the zoning designation for that piece of property 

would otherwise allow. 

Developer Incentives:   Developer incentives, such as density bonuses, expedited permit processes, fee waiv‐

ers, and resource reductions are given to developers to either encourage them to build affordable units within 

a development, or to compensate them for selling/renting the units below market to designated income popu‐

lations.  

Development Fee:  A Development Fee is broadly defined as any fee paid to the municipally associated with 

the development of a project within Flagstaff, including Impact Fees.   

Expedited Permit Process:  An expedited permit process allows a municipality to review and process a devel‐

oper’s application for building permits, zoning permits, and other permits, on a faster time schedule than usu‐

al.  Expedited permit process is offered to a developer, if that developer includes affordable units within a de‐

velopment.   

Fee Waiver:  The City may waive certain municipal fees for developers, such as building permits, and entitle‐

ment fees, in exchange for the construction of a certain number of affordable units as part of the proposed de‐

velopment. 

Housing Set-Aside:  A housing set-aside in a development agreement provides for a developer to receive in-
centives for development in exchange for the “set aside” of a percentage of the total units to be affordable to 
designated income populations.  For example, a 10% set-aside means a developer would provide one afforda-
ble unit for every ten market-rate units within a proposed development in exchange for density bonuses, ex-
pedited permitting, fee waivers or reimbursement, flexible design standards, or financial offsets.  The afforda-
ble units shall be distributed proportionally throughout the development and phases (where applicable) and 
appropriately designed and integrated with market-rate units throughout the development.  Thirty percent (30 
%) of affordable units must be delivered in the first phase and the remainder of the units must be delivered 
proportionally based on years of build-out and phasing.   

Income‐Targeting:  The income target is the household income level targeted to benefit from the pricing of the 

affordable units.  Income level targeting is determined by looking at the needs and demands within the com‐

munity.   For example, a municipality may determine  there  is a need  for housing  for moderate‐income  level 



 

 

 
C i t y  o f  F l a g s t a f f   I n c e n t i v e  P o l i c y  f o r  A f f o r d a b l e  H o u s i n g   

5 

households, such as public safety employees, and thus income targeting would produce affordable units to the 

designated income populations.  

Income‐Tiering:  Income‐tiering is when categories of income levels are produced for which affordable units 

must be appropriately priced.  For example, a municipality may decide that the affordable units in a develop‐

ment must be attainable for households that earn between 50% and 80% of AMI. 

In‐lieu of Attainable Housing Contribution:  The City may permit a developer to make a fee in‐lieu or cash 

payment, instead of constructing affordable units within the proposed development.  Usually these payments 

are deposited in a housing trust fund or a similar restricted fund for the construction of other affordable units 

elsewhere within the City. 

Market Rate:  The market rate is the price that a residential unit would sell or rent for on the open real estate 

market without any subsidies or price restrictions. 

Period of Affordability:  The period of affordability is the length of time a unit is required to be sold or rented 

at a price affordable to the income level determined by the municipality.  Periods of affordability are usually 

outlined and enforced through affordability controls, such as deed restrictions or covenants. 

Permanent Affordability:  Permanent Affordability is divided into two categories:  rental and ownership.  If a 

development participates in the voluntary Incentive Policy for Affordable Housing (IPAH) options for rental 

units, the period of affordability requirement is enforced for no less than 30 years and is subject to renewal.  If 

a development participates in IPAH options for ownership units, the permanent affordability requirement for 

ownership is enforced at 99‐years and is renewable.   

Price Point:  The price point is the price, or range of prices, a developer determines a unit would sell or rent for 

on the open market, based on design, location and size. 

Rental Unit:  A rental unit is a unit owned by one party and then leased to another. 

Resale Restriction:  A resale restriction is a requirement on the title of the property that must be met before the 

property is sold to another owner.  Resale restrictions are used as an affordability control tool; for example, the 

sale of a unit might be restricted unless the new owner meets certain requirements outlined in associated doc‐

uments. 

Right of First Refusal:  The right of first refusal prevents the sale of a residential property until a designated 

party has been offered the opportunity to purchase the property first.  For example, if a municipality has the 

right of first refusal, then an affordable unit cannot be sold unless the municipality has been offered the oppor‐

tunity to purchase the property first. 



 

 

 
C i t y  o f  F l a g s t a f f   I n c e n t i v e  P o l i c y  f o r  A f f o r d a b l e  H o u s i n g   

6 

Second Mortgage Lien:  A second mortgage lien is a claim or charge on a property for payment on a debt that 

is second in priority to the first mortgage.  Some municipalities use second mortgages to enforce affordability 

controls, so if the owner attempts to sell the affordable unit to ineligible households, the municipality can en‐

force the lien and recapture the property. 

Workforce Housing:  “Workforce Housing” in the City of Flagstaff’s Zoning Code (LDC) should be replaced 

by the term Affordable Housing. 

Workforce Housing  Project:    “Workforce Housing  Project”  in  the City  of  Flagstaff’s  Zoning  Code  (LDC) 

should be replaced by the term Affordable Housing. 

Zoning  Code:    The  City  of  Flagstaff  currently  operates  under  a  zoning  ordinance  known  as  the  Land 

Development  Code  (LDC).    References  in  this  document  are  made  to  the  Zoning  Code,  as  the  LDC  is 

undergoing a substantial re‐write and will most likely be renamed.  A zoning code divides a municipality into 

districts  and outlines  a  set of  enforceable  regulations  regarding  the  structure, design,  and use of buildings 

within each district. 

3.  IPAH STANDARDS 

3.1 As part of Council’s housing policy goals, the Housing Section will be provided the opportunity to 
propose development and/or redevelopment as Affordable Housing for City-owned surplus property, where 
Council deems appropriate, except for land with a current, adopted Master Plan. 

3.2  Incentive Policy for Affordable Housing initiatives involves an application and certification process.  
IPAH is available for rental and owner-occupied new construction and rehabilitated housing or shelter that 
meets the IPAH standards.   

3.3 The proposed development or redevelopment will comply with the City of Flagstaff Zoning Code, the 
Regional Transportation and Land Use Plan, adopted Building Codes for the City of Flagstaff, Engineering 
Standards, and all mandatory sustainability measures adopted by City Council.   

3.4 Developers of residential or mixed use developments that voluntarily provide a minimum of ten per-
cent (10%) affordable housing units seeking rezoning of any kind or other discretionary land use approval will 
be able to benefit from the incentives offered by IPAH.  Additionally, if the developer provides affordable 
housing in a district that permits residential uses then all regulatory, procedural, and program incentives in 
this Policy are applicable, provided that the developer complies with all other regulations of the districts.  This 
Policy also allows utilization of all applicable procedural and program measures for residential development 
and redevelopment that is within the Established districts, provided that ten percent (10%) or more of units are 
affordable.  In any event, utilization of any of the incentives is optional. 



 

 

 
C i t y  o f  F l a g s t a f f   I n c e n t i v e  P o l i c y  f o r  A f f o r d a b l e  H o u s i n g   

7 

3.5 A variety of housing types, mixed income and affordable housing developments are encouraged 
throughout the City and within each neighborhood.  Mixed-income means that the development includes at 
least 10% affordable housing units that are preserved as permanently affordable.  Affordable housing that 
must comply with other federal, state, or local preservation time periods shall also be considered to meet the 
permanent affordability standards.   

3.6 The housing units created for sale under IPAH must be owner-occupied.  The eligible household must 
occupy the housing unit until the time of re-sale.  Housing units created for rent under IPAH must have 
households be income certified on an annual basis.   

3.7 The City, or an agency designated by the City, will certify Eligible Buyers and Eligible Renters in ac-
cordance with the income qualification rules of the Federal HOME program or other reasonable standards, 
which take into account income, family size, assets and other economic circumstances.  Certification of Eligible 
Households shall apply to all subsequent households for the permanent affordability period.  Failure to meet 
this requirement will be considered a breach of contract.  Contract terms are outlined within individual devel-
opment agreements. 

3.8 The affordable units shall be distributed proportionally throughout the development and phases 
(where applicable) and appropriately designed and integrated with market-rate units throughout the devel-
opment.  Thirty percent (30 %) of affordable units must be delivered in the first phase and the remainder of the 
units must be delivered proportionally based on years of build-out and phasing.   

3.9 Grandfather Clause:  Opportunities to utilize IPAH may be available for projects that have not received 
final platting or site plan approval and that offer a minimum of ten percent (10%) affordable housing.  The 
owner/developer/applicant is responsible for all modifications to plans and initiating the benefits of the in-
centives.    

3.10 If a developer is considering permanently preserving housing stock that had an expiring period of af-
fordability, they may take advantage of any incentives that are applicable to their application.  The developer 
must also meet all other applicable requirements in order to receive IPAH incentives. 

3.11 The owner/developer/applicant or others acting on behalf of the development entity may be required 
to execute an agreement, restrictive covenants, or other binding restrictions that run with the land in order to 
insure Permanent Affordability, in accordance with IPAH standards. 

3.12 Developments providing permanent affordable housing located within the City of Flagstaff Urban 
Growth Boundary 1 and 2 (as defined in the 2001 Land Use and Transportation Plan or its successor) will be 
eligible for IPAH, as long as the development contains one of the following: 

3.12.1 Transit Access - The proposed project must have a bus route located within 1/2 mile of the de-
velopment by the time of eighty percent (80%) of completion; OR 



 

 

 
C i t y  o f  F l a g s t a f f   I n c e n t i v e  P o l i c y  f o r  A f f o r d a b l e  H o u s i n g   

8 

3.12.2 The development must secure acceptance from Staff for a strategy to provide access to alterna-
tive transit.  This strategy could include vanpool, park-n-ride, FUTS trail access, or service plans for 
seniors and persons with disabilities.  It could also include direct access to several land uses that service 
residential customers, such as food sales, banking, general retail and other key services (Activity Cen-
ters); OR 

3.12.3 The development must present documentation from NAIPTA that future service plans will es-
tablish a bus route located within previously defined distances to the site and funding must be identi-
fied for this route.  

3.13 Design Standards apply to multi-family and mixed-use developments.  These standards may be found 
or referenced within the City of Flagstaff Zoning Code. 

3.14 Because the number of fee waivers and reimbursement opportunities are limited on an annual basis, as 
are the resources for expedited review, there is a first-come, first-served policy.  Once a project receives Devel-
opment Review Board (“DRB”) approval, resources may be set-aside for the applicable incentives at this time.  
If a project does not receive Final Plat or Site Plan approval within twelve (12) months of DRB approval, the 
funds will be allocated to the next available project.   

3.15 Other Requirements: 

3.15.1 Developers wishing to exercise the incentives within IPAH must have site control of the 
land/lots located within the city limits of Flagstaff.  If the desired zoning is not in place, the applicant 
must also provide and meet all other applicable requirements in order to receive IPAH incentives.   

3.15.2 Single-family units on infill lots receiving fee waivers must be completed, sold, and occupied 
within twenty-four (24) months of the execution of a contract, development agreement, or other bind-
ing restriction with the City or an approved third party.  Multi-family, mixed-use and single-family 
units within a new subdivision’s defined phase must be completed, sold, and/or occupied within thir-
ty-six (36) months of the execution of a contract, development agreement, or other binding restriction 
with the City or an approved third party.   

3.15.3 If a developer is planning to utilize a third party entity to provide permanent affordability with-
in a given project, the developer and its representative must enter into a development agreement that 
clarifies the management, use, and oversight of the affordable components.  This agreement is in addi-
tion to a deed restriction or affordability covenant to be recorded with the Final Plat or Site Plan.   

3.16 Covenants must be in place as a written agreement that is recorded with the deed of the property.  
Covenants will apply to all future owners of the property or for a specified time period.  The affordability cov-
enant allows the agency with oversight to enforce the affordability controls.  The covenants require that a 



 

 

 
C i t y  o f  F l a g s t a f f   I n c e n t i v e  P o l i c y  f o r  A f f o r d a b l e  H o u s i n g   

9 

property only be sold or rented to households that meet the income eligibility criteria.  Covenants should run 
with the land, or bind each successive owner of the land.   

3.17 In order to transfer the right of use to another qualified household, a deed restriction is put in place.  
These deed restrictions provide that the property can only be rented or sold to households that meet the in-
come eligibility criteria identified.  Deed restrictions such as these, with regard to affordability, are restrictions 
or requirements that must be met by both the buyer and the seller before the property can be transferred.   

4.  IPAH PROCESS   

In order to begin the voluntary housing incentive process, an applicant should contact their staff representa-
tive to have a preliminary discussion about the project.  A City representative will be the single point of con-
tact and will be working in collaboration with a member of the Housing Section on the identified project.  Staff 
will meet with the applicant to discuss potential incentives and benefits of IPAH Housing Incentives.  Once 
there is interest in pursuing incentives, the “Affordable Housing Proposal” application should be returned to 
the staff representative.  This application is available on-line at www.flagstaff.az.gov/housing or at the front 
counter of the Community Development Division.   

For Multi-Family, Mixed-Use, site plans, and single-family subdivisions, staff and the applicant establish the 
IPAH review timeline as well as initial incentive opportunities for the project.  The applicant has until Prelimi-
nary Plat approval to commit to IPAH incentives.  There may be exceptions to this timeframe and both the 
Housing Manager and the Planning Director will evaluate them on a case-by-case basis.    

At the time a unit is ready to receive a Certificate of Occupancy (C of O), the IPAH applicant must demon-
strate compliance with the approved pricing structure and covenants.  Compliance is established through a 
meeting with a member of the Housing Section who will review the necessary documents.  In addition, the 
party selected to review income verification data throughout the affordability period, including initial occu-
pancy, will be contacted by the Housing Section to determine initial compliance.   

The Final Plat or Site Plan shall identify the affordable units/lots and shall contain a notice, approved by the 
City that the deed to the affordable units/lots is subject to the terms of the development agreement, affordabil-
ity covenant, and deed restrictions.  The development agreement and affordability covenant shall provide that 
if the developer is not in compliance with the terms and conditions of the development agreement and other 
application regulations, the City reserves the right to withhold building or occupancy permits until the devel-
oper is in full compliance with the terms and conditions of the development agreement and/or other applica-
ble regulations.   

5.  IPAH INCENTIVES   

5.1 Fee Waivers    

http://www.flagstaff.az.gov/housing


 

 

 
C i t y  o f  F l a g s t a f f   I n c e n t i v e  P o l i c y  f o r  A f f o r d a b l e  H o u s i n g   

10 

The City of Flagstaff may waive certain Building Permit and Planning fees for developments that the Commu-
nity Development Director certifies as an IPAH development.  The City may also permit the reimbursement of 
fees tied to Development Fees (Impact Fees).  Fee waivers and reimbursements are subject to a sliding scale 
based on the AMI served by the developer.  The lower the AMI served, the greater the waiver and reimburse-
ment percentages.  All fees are subject to funding availability and funding may not be available when a project 
is approved.   

The following pages provide the list of fees that may be waived or reimbursed for IPAH developments and the 
sliding scale of waivers and reimbursements based on the AMI served within the project. 

Please note that fee waivers are not available for owners with outstanding Code violations, City tax or licens-
ing violations, or violations on accessibility issues on units or projects with which the owning entity is affiliat-
ed.  Fee waivers are also not available for owners with outstanding or overdue debts to the City. 

5.2 Defer Development Fees (Impact Fees) for Market Rate Units 

Development Fees, specific to Impact Fees, may be deferred until the unit is at certificate of occupancy stage.  
This option is available for all market-rate units that are constructed with twenty percent (20%) or more af-
fordable housing units within the development.    



 

 

 
C i t y  o f  F l a g s t a f f   I n c e n t i v e  P o l i c y  f o r  A f f o r d a b l e  H o u s i n g   

11 

5.3 IPAH Fees Eligibility List  

City Department Fee Type Reimbursement or Waiver 

Community Development    

 Zoning Fees Rezoning Application Fees 25% Reimbursement 

General Plan Amendment 25% Reimbursement  

 Subdivision Fees Developer Master Plan 50% Reimbursement 

DRB Concept Plan Submittal Reimbursed 

Preliminary Plat Submittal Waiver/Reimbursed 

Final Plat Submittal Waiver 

 Site Plan Fees DRB Site Plan (Formal) Submittal  Waiver 

Concept Plan  Reimburse 

P&Z Review/Approval Waiver 

 Building Plan 
Review, Permit, 
and Inspection 
Fees 

Building Permit Deposit Fees Excluded 

Building Permit Fees Waiver 

Plan Check Fees Waiver 

Public Improvement Permit Fees Waiver 

Plan Review Engineering  Waiver 

Over-the-Counter Permit Fees 
(standalone) 

Excluded  

Development Fee (Impact Fees) Reimburse 

Utilities Department  Development Fee (Impact Fees) Reimburse 

 



 

 

 
C i t y  o f  F l a g s t a f f   I n c e n t i v e  P o l i c y  f o r  A f f o r d a b l e  H o u s i n g   

12 

Waiver and Reimbursement Scale (based on AMI served) for project providing up to 20% Affordable Housing 

AMI Served Percentage Waived or Reimbursed 

60% AMI or Below 100% 

61 – 80% AMI 75% 

81 – 125% AMI 25% 

 

Waiver and Reimbursement Scale (based on AMI served) for project providing greater than 20% Affordable 
Housing 

AMI Served Percentage Waived or Reimbursed 

Below 80% AMI 100% 

80 - 125% AMI 75% 

126 - 150% AMI 25% 

 

If a developer designs and constructs units that meet all mandatory and voluntary energy code expectations 
within an IPAH development (minimum of 20% affordable units), the developer may receive a 100% waiver 
and/or reimbursement for all units. 

5.4 Expedited Review  

IPAH  developments  are  eligible  for  expedited  review  throughout  the  post‐entitlement  planning  process, 

which  is  typically  faster  than  the  review  time  for a conventional development project.   City staff will work 

with applicants  to usher projects  through  review and  inspection as quickly and efficiently as possible, on a 

timeline to be negotiated in a development agreement. 

For Multi-Family, Mixed-Use, site plans, and single-family subdivisions, the applicant and staff must establish 
an IPAH review timeline as well as initial incentive opportunities for the project.  Review timelines may be re-
duced by fifty percent (50%) for the affordable housing units within the development.  In order to process the 
expedited review timelines, the applicant must commit a minimum of ten percent (10%) affordable units.  If 
the developer wishes to have market-rate units qualify for expedited review, the developer must provide 
greater than twenty percent (20%) affordable housing units and will then be encouraged to submit like units 
under a block submittal.   



 

 

 
C i t y  o f  F l a g s t a f f   I n c e n t i v e  P o l i c y  f o r  A f f o r d a b l e  H o u s i n g   

13 

The applicant has until Preliminary Plat approval to commit to IPAH incentives.  There may be exceptions to 
this timeframe and both the Housing Manager and the Planning Director will evaluate them on a case-by-case 
basis.    

The speed of the review also depends to a significant degree on the quality of the applicant’s submittals and 
performance.  Providing corrections, responding to comments, and ultimately securing an approval in a timely 
manner is a shared responsibility of both staff and the applicant.  Expedited review may be discontinued if the 
applicant’s design team fails to respond to comments in a timely manner.   

In order for an applicant to obtain an expedited review (barring statutory requirements) through the entitle-
ment process, a copy of the Affordable Housing Proposal signed by the Housing Manager certifying the de-
veloper’s commitment to affordable housing, must be attached to the submittal. 

In order for an applicant to obtain an expedited Engineering and Development Services Review, the permit for 
each affordable unit must contain a copy of the IPAH Certification Letter from the Housing section that is pro-
vided at time of Final Plat or Site Plan approval.  All new buildings must comply with all codes in effect on the 
day the building permit application was filed.  Building permit applications and other information can be re-
trieved at the Community Development front counter or at http://flagstaff.az.gov/index.aspx?nid=494. 

5.5 Regulatory Incentives – Planned Affordable Option 

Regulatory incentives are located within the City of Flagstaff’s Zoning Code under the “Planned Affordable 
Option” and provide a commitment to a minimum of ten percent (10%) affordable housing units.   

5.5.1 Density Bonuses and Flexible Design Standards for selected zoning districts have been incorpo-
rated into the current Zoning Code, under the “Planned Affordable Option”.   (See Table 10-04-002-
0003 in City of Flagstaff’s Zoning Code).  

5.5.1.1  If Density Bonuses are used, the applicant may be allowed up to 50% of the bonus den-
sity to be market rate and the other 50% to be affordable – making sure that no less than 10% of 
the overall project is dedicated to affordable housing. 

5.5.1.2 Minimum Open Space Ratios (OSR) have been reduced for selected zoning districts in 
the “Planned Affordable Option” of the current Zoning Code. 

5.5.1.3 Minimum site areas have been reduced for selected zoning districts, which are identified 
in the “Planned Affordable Option” in the current Zoning Code.  

5.5.2 Ten to twenty percent (10 – 20%) reduction in slope and forest resources protection levels in the 
Zoning Code commensurate with the percentage of affordable housing units provided (e.g., 10% af-
fordable = 10% resource reduction in slope and forest protection, 12% = 12%, etc.), to a maximum of 

http://flagstaff.az.gov/index.aspx?nid=494


 

 

 
C i t y  o f  F l a g s t a f f   I n c e n t i v e  P o l i c y  f o r  A f f o r d a b l e  H o u s i n g   

14 

twenty percent (20%).  A minimum of ten percent (10%) affordable housing units must be provided to 
be eligible.   

5.5.3 In applicable districts, a project may receive a double counting of 50% of the resources that 
overlap (trees/slopes/floodplain), if the project provides up to 20% affordable housing.   If the project 
provides greater than 20% affordable housing, then all resources that overlap may be double counted. 

5.5.4 Parking Incentives: 

5.5.4.1 Tandem Parking may be permitted as an incentive to satisfy two (2) parking spaces, so 
long as the parking does not extend into the Right-of-Way or defined set-backs. 

5.5.4.2 Reduction of parking requirements - The incentive, as calculated in the Zoning Code, al-
lows for a reduced count in necessary parking spaces based on the number of affordable hous-
ing units provided within a development. 

5.5.4.3 Shared Parking - If a project includes affordable housing within mixed-use and infill de-
velopments, shared parking with non-competing uses is provided as an incentive (e.g. office 
space that operates during a typical work day hours and residential development).  A Parking 
Demand Study may be needed to identify shared parking options. 

5.6. Land Donation – Tax Deduction 

Applicants may receive a tax deduction (IRS Publication 526) if land on which the units are built is dedicated 
to the City of Flagstaff.  This allows long term administration of the permanent affordable units under the City 
of Flagstaff Community Land Trust Program.   Any developer considering this option should consult with a 
tax professional to determine eligibility for a tax deduction. 

If the developer chooses to work with a 3rd party on affordable housing efforts, they will need to review their 
process and procedures for land donations.   

5.7. Public Improvement Districts 

Public Improvement Districts are currently permissible in Arizona.  Public infrastructure and related items 
may be available as an incentive to produce affordable housing in Flagstaff.   

5.8. In-lieu of Affordable Housing Contribution 

In specific circumstances, where the development is unable to provide lots that are financially feasible to con-
struct affordable housing, the City may permit the developer to use incentives within IPAH and provide a 
comparable land or financial donation in order to provide affordable housing in other locations within Flag-
staff.  Opting to put forth a financial contribution must not be an incentive unto itself; it should accurately re-
flect the true cost of land for purchase and ultimate development for affordable housing. 



 

 

 
C i t y  o f  F l a g s t a f f   I n c e n t i v e  P o l i c y  f o r  A f f o r d a b l e  H o u s i n g   

15 

APPENDIX A - Area Median Income for Flagstaff, AZ MSA  

 

2014 HUD Area Median Income (AMI) Guidelines 
 

FAMILY SIZE 

%AMI 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

30%  $ 12,500   $ 14,300   $ 16,100   $ 17,850   $ 19,300   $  20,750   $  22,750   $  23,600  

50%  $ 20,850   $ 23,800   $ 26,800   $ 29,750   $ 32,150   $  34,550   $  36,900   $  39,300  

60%  $ 25,020  $ 28,560   $ 32,160   $ 35,700   $ 38,580   $  41,460   $  44,280   $  47,160  

80%  $ 33,350   $ 38,100   $ 42,850   $ 47,600   $ 51,450   $  55,250   $  59,250   $  62,850  

90%  $ 36,477   $ 41,688   $ 46,899   $ 52,110   $ 56,279   $  60,448   $  64,616   $  68,785  

100%  $ 40,530   $ 46,320   $ 52,110   $ 57,900   $ 62,532   $  67,164   $  71,796   $  76,428  

115%  $ 46,610   $ 53,268   $ 59,927   $ 66,585   $ 71,912   $  77,239   $  82,565   $  87,892  

125%  $ 50,663   $ 57,900   $ 65,138   $ 72,375   $ 78,165   $  83,955   $  89,745   $  95,535  

150%    60,795   $ 69,480   $ 78,165   $ 86,850   $ 93,798   $100,746   $ 107,694   $ 114,642  
 

 



Flagstaff 
Division 10-30.20: Affordable Housing Incentives

Page 1/5

The Flagstaff City Charter and City Code are current through Ordinance 2020-32, passed November 17, 2020. 

Division 10-30.20:

Affordable Housing Incentives

Sections:
10-30.20.010    Purpose
10-30.20.020    Applicability
10-30.20.030    Administration
10-30.20.040    Affordable Housing Incentives
10-30.20.050    Density Bonus
10-30.20.060    Appeals

10-30.20.010 Purpose
This division implements the City’s Incentive Policy for Affordable Housing (IPAH), which is intended to foster the 
preservation and production of permanent affordable housing units. The division encourages the preservation and 
production of affordable units by providing increased residential densities and other developer incentives for 
developments that guarantee that at least a portion of the housing will be affordable. The intent is to narrow the 
housing deficit for households that cannot afford market-priced rental or for-sale housing. In conjunction with 
market dynamics, the Council shall set policies on the area median income the City will serve. This information will 
be updated in the IPAH document. Affordable housing must meet applicable regulations of the Federal government, 
Arizona Revised Statutes, and all other appropriate regulating entities.

10-30.20.020 Applicability
In order to be eligible for the incentives provided by this division, a proposed development shall voluntarily comply 
with the following requirements and satisfy all other provisions of this Zoning Code.

A.    Location. Affordable housing shall be allowed where residential uses are allowed in the City.

B.    Housing Section Proposals. The Housing Section will be provided the opportunity to propose development 
and/or redevelopment as affordable housing for City-owned surplus property, where the Council deems appropriate, 
except for land with a current and adopted master plan.

C.    Minimum Percentage. A minimum of 10 percent of the total number of proposed units must be affordable 
housing, as defined in Section 10-30.20.050, Density Bonus.

D.    Housing Variety. A variety of housing types, mixed income, and affordable housing developments are 
encouraged throughout the City and within each neighborhood. Mixed income means that the development includes 
at least 10 percent affordable housing units that are preserved as permanently affordable.

E.    Other Regulations. Affordable housing that must comply with other Federal, State, or local preservation time 
periods and applicable regulations shall also be considered to meet the permanent affordability standards.

F.    Grandfather Clause. Opportunities to utilize the IPAH may be available for developments that have not 
received final platting or site plan approval and that offer a minimum of 10 percent affordable housing. The owner, 
developer, or applicant, as applicable, is responsible for all modifications to plans and initiating the benefits of the 
incentives.

G.    Housing Preservation. If an applicant is considering permanently preserving housing stock that had an 
expiring period of affordability, they may take advantage of any incentives that are applicable to their application. 
The applicant must also meet all other applicable requirements in order to receive IPAH incentives.

H.    Site Control. Applicants wishing to exercise the incentives in this division must have site control of the land.

I.    Requirements in Urban Growth Boundaries. Developments providing permanent affordable housing 
located within City Urban Growth Boundaries 1 and 2 (as defined in the General Plan) will be eligible for IPAH, as 
long as the development contains at least one of the following:



Flagstaff 
Division 10-30.20: Affordable Housing Incentives

Page 2/5

The Flagstaff City Charter and City Code are current through Ordinance 2020-32, passed November 17, 2020. 

1.    The proposed development must have a bus route located within one-half mile of the development by the 
time 80 percent of the development is completed;

2.    The development must secure acceptance from the Director for a strategy to provide access to alternative 
transit. This strategy could include vanpool, park-n-ride, Flagstaff Urban Trails System (FUTS) trail access, or 
service plans for seniors and persons with disabilities. It could also include direct access to several land uses 
that service residential customers, such as food sales, banking, general retail and other key services; or

3.    The development must present documentation from Northern Arizona Intergovernmental Public 
Transportation Authority (NAIPTA) that future service plans will establish a bus route within previously 
defined distances to the site and funding has been identified for this route.

10-30.20.030 Administration
A.    The City, or an agency designated by the City, shall monitor ongoing affordability of affordable housing 
units.

1.    The applicant must demonstrate compliance with the approved pricing structure and shall be required to 
execute an agreement, restrictive covenants, or other binding affordability restrictions that run with the land. 
These affordability covenants or deed restrictions must be in place as a written agreement that is recorded with 
the deed of the property and limits transfer of the property to another qualified household. The covenants or 
deed restriction will apply permanently.

2.    The applicant shall be required to provide tenant income qualification reports to the City for monitoring 
on an annual or biennial basis.

3.    If an applicant is planning to utilize a third party entity to provide and manage the affordable units, the 
applicant and the third party must enter into an agreement that clarifies the management, use and oversight of 
the affordable components. This agreement is in addition to a deed restriction and/or affordability covenant 
discussed in subsection (A)(1) of this section.

4.    Council will determine the income ranges associated with the four categories for housing affordability 
provided in Table 10-30.20.040.A and Table 10-30.20.040.B, and this income determination will be updated 
within the Incentive Policy for Affordable Housing (IPAH) document. Each of the four categories is described 
below. The specific income ranges associated with each category are provided in Appendix 7, Additional 
Information on Affordable Housing:

a.    Category 1: This category provides permanent affordability through both rental and ownership 
opportunities.

b.    Category 2: This category is reserved for ownership opportunities only.

c.    Category 3: This category provides incentives for sustainability/green building provisions within the 
entire development.

d.    Category 4: This category allows for short term affordability without any permanent affordable 
provision.

B.    Dispersal of Units and Construction Phasing. The affordable units shall be distributed proportionally 
throughout the development, appropriately designed and integrated with the market-rate units, and, as feasible, 
contain the same number of bedrooms as the market-rate units. Thirty percent of affordable units must be delivered 
in the first phase (where applicable) and the remainder of the units must be delivered proportionally based on the 
development build-out and phasing.

C.    Design Review. Architectural standards and design review apply to multifamily and mixed-use developments. 
These standards may be referenced in Division 10-50.20, Architectural Design Standards, and Appendix 1.1, Design 
Guidelines.



Flagstaff 
Division 10-30.20: Affordable Housing Incentives

Page 3/5

The Flagstaff City Charter and City Code are current through Ordinance 2020-32, passed November 17, 2020. 

D.    In limited circumstances, where the applicant is unable to construct affordable housing, the City may permit 
the applicant to use incentives and provide a comparable land or financial donation in order to provide affordable 
housing in other locations. Opting to put forth a financial contribution must not be an incentive unto itself; it should 
accurately reflect the cost of land and development for affordable housing.

10-30.20.040 Affordable Housing Incentives
An applicant that meets the terms of this division may be eligible for certain incentives. Incentives can include 
reductions in resources protections, density bonuses, reduced parking and other modified Zoning Code 
requirements, including, but not limited to, a reduction in setback, square footage or landscaping requirements that 
result in identifiable, financially sufficient and actual cost reductions. Specific incentives can be found in subsection 
(B) of this section. Additional incentives, such as fee reductions, fee waivers, and expedited processing can also be 
found in the IPAH.

A.    Number of Incentives. Based on the percentage of affordable units and the level of affordability (e.g., 
category 1 to 4), the City may grant the applicant incentives listed in subsection (B) of this section. The number of 
incentives increases as the percentage of affordable units increases as outlined in Table 10-30.20.040.A, Number of 
Incentives.

Table 10-30.20.040.A: Number of Incentives 

Number of 
Incentives

Category 11 Permanent 
Affordability (% of 
Affordable Units)

Category 21 Permanent 
Affordability (% of 
Affordable Units)

Category 31 Permanent 
Affordability and Sustainable 

Building – Division 10-30.70 (% 
of Affordable Units)

Category 41 One-time 
Affordability (% of 
Affordable Units)

1 10% 10% 10% 10%

2 11% 12% 12%

3 12% 14% 14%

4 13% 16% 16%

5 or more 14% or more 20% or more 20% or more

End Notes

1The income ranges associated with Categories 1 through 4 shall be determined by the Council in the most recently 
adopted IPAH document (see Appendix 6 (Additional Information on Affordable Housing)).

B.    Incentives Defined. For the purposes of this division, developer incentives for affordable housing 
development are defined below.

1.    Resource Protection Standards.

a.    Where forest resources on a site overlap with steep slope resources, the forest resources in the steep 
slope area may be counted toward the required amount of forest resources for the whole site. (See Division 
10-50.90, Resource Protection Standards.)

b.    In addition, the forest resources that must be retained on-site in the Resource Protection Overlay 
(RPO) zone may be reduced for affordable housing developments based on the percentage of affordable 
units provided and the category of affordability. (Forest resource protection requirements are provided in 
Table 10-50.90.060.A, Forest Resource Protection Thresholds as a Percentage of Site Area, in Division 
10-50.90, Resource Protection Standards.

(1)    The potential forest resource reductions for affordable housing are shown in Table 10-
30.20.030.B, Reduction in Forest Resource Protection Thresholds for Affordable Housing 
Developments.



Flagstaff 
Division 10-30.20: Affordable Housing Incentives

Page 4/5

The Flagstaff City Charter and City Code are current through Ordinance 2020-32, passed November 17, 2020. 

(2)    For example, an affordable housing development in category 2 that provides 10 percent of the 
units as affordable could reduce the forest resource protection by 20 percent, so that 40 percent of the 
forest must be retained instead of 50 percent (i.e., the 50 percent requirement for forest resource 
protection [Table 10-50.90.060.A, Forest Resource Protection Thresholds as a Percentage of Site Area] 
is reduced by 20 percent).

(3)    For categories 1 and 2, the forest resource reduction could be additive for a development, if the 
percentage of affordable units is met. Category 3 stands alone and cannot be combined with forest 
resource reductions in other categories. However, the maximum amount that forest resources may be 
reduced for an affordable housing development is 50 percent.

Table 10-30.20.040.B: Reduction in Forest Resource Protection Thresholds for Affordable Housing Developments 

Category 11 (Permanent Affordability) Category 21 (Permanent Affordability)
Category 31 (Permanent Affordability and 
Sustainable Building – Division 10-30.70)

Percentage of 
Affordable Units

Resource Reductions
Percentage of 

Affordable Units
Resource Reductions

Percentage of 
Affordable Units

Resource Reductions

10% 25% 10% 20% 10% 25%

11% 30% 12% 25% 12% 30%

12% 35% 14% 30% 14% 35%

13% 40% 16% 35% 16% 40%

14% 45% 18% 40% 18% 45%

15% 50% 20% 45% 20% 50%

End Notes

1 The income ranges associated with Categories 1 through 3 shall be determined by the Council in the most recently 
adopted IPAH document (see Appendix 6 (Additional Information on Affordable Housing)).

2.    Density Bonus. Affordable housing developments may be eligible for a density bonus if at least 10 
percent of the proposed units are affordable in compliance with Section 10-30.20.050, Density Bonus.

3.    Parking Incentives.

a.    The number of required parking spaces for affordable housing is reduced as specified in Table 10-
50.80.040.A, Number of Motor Vehicle Parking Spaces Required; and

b.    Modifications to parking requirements for affordable housing developments within one-quarter mile 
of a transit stop may be reduced up to 15 percent.

4.    Adjustment of Building Form Standards.

a.    Affordable housing can utilize Planned Residential Development (Section 10-40.60.280) in any zone 
to provide flexibility in the application of building form requirements and to increase the potential 
building types.

b.    Minor modifications to building form standards for affordable housing developments (e.g., setbacks, 
height, coverage, area, lot size, or other lot requirements) may be modified up to 15 percent.

5.    Landscaping Standards Reductions. Minor modifications to landscaping standards for affordable 
housing developments may be reduced by no more than 10 percent.

(Ord. 2016-07, Amended, 2/16/2016 (Res. 2016-02))



Flagstaff 
Division 10-30.20: Affordable Housing Incentives

Page 5/5

The Flagstaff City Charter and City Code are current through Ordinance 2020-32, passed November 17, 2020. 

10-30.20.050 Density Bonus
A.    An applicant may be eligible for a density bonus if at least 10 percent of the proposed units are affordable. 
The density bonus is an increase in residential units over the maximum residential density listed in the building form 
standards (Chapter 10-40, Specific to Zones). The units gained from qualifying for a density bonus can be rented or 
sold at market rates without affordability covenants or deed restrictions, as long as the proposed percentage of 
affordable units is satisfied.

B.    The density bonuses apply to non-transect and transect zones.

C.    In determining the number of density bonus units to be granted pursuant to this section, before the density 
bonus is added the maximum residential density for the site shall be multiplied by the percentage of density bonus 
listed in Table 10-30.20.050.A, Percentage of Affordable Units and Corresponding Density Bonus, based on the 
percentage of affordable units provided for each category. All density calculations resulting in fractional units shall 
be rounded to the next whole number. For example:

For a site that has a maximum density of 100 units and provides 12 units (12 percent) affordable to Category 2 
households, the density bonus would be 22 percent. The density bonus would be calculated as: 100 x 0.22 = 22 
units. The total units constructed would be 122 units (100 units + 22 density bonus units).

D.    For Categories 1 and 2, the density bonus could be additive for a development, if the percentage of affordable 
units is met. Categories 3 and 4 stand alone and cannot be combined with density bonuses in other categories.

Table 10-30.20.050.A: Percentage of Affordable Units and Corresponding Density Bonus1

Category 12 (Permanent 
Affordability)

Category 22 (Permanent 
Affordability)

Category 32 (Permanent 
Affordability and Sustainable 
Building – Division 10-30.70)

Category 42 (One Time 
Affordability)

% of 
Affordable 

Units

% of Density 
Bonus

% of 
Affordable 

Units

% of Density 
Bonus

% of 
Affordable 

Units

% of Density 
Bonus

% of 
Affordable 

Units

% of Density 
Bonus

10% 20% 10% 15% 10% 25% 10% or more 5%

12% 23% 11% 18% 11% 28%

14% 27% 12% 22% 12% 32%

16% 32% 13% 27% 13% 37%

18% 37% 15% 32% 14% 42%

20% or more 45% 20% or more 40% 20% or more 50%

End Notes

1The percentages provided in this table represent the City’s expectation for affordable housing units and associated 
density bonuses. The density bonus percentages may be increased or decreased by as much as 3% by the Director; 
provided, that an applicant can justify in writing that a proposed development provides comprehensive overall 
community benefits beyond those provided by the additional provision of affordable housing units.

2The income ranges associated with Categories 1 through 4 shall be determined by the Council in the most recently 
adopted IPAH document (see Appendix 6 (Additional Information on Affordable Housing)).

(Ord. 2016-07, Amended, 2/16/2016 (Res. 2016-02))

10-30.20.060 Appeals
Any person, firm, or corporation aggrieved by a decision of the Director regarding a requested incentive may file an 
appeal as specified in Section 10-20.80.030, Appeals of Permits and Other Approvals.



Incentive Policy for Affordable Housing and Zoning Code Update

Page 1 of 2

Objectives
The objectives of the update to the Incentive Policy for Affordable Housing (IPAH) and the Zoning Code 
Affordable Housing Incentives are to:
∑ Revise the IPAH to better align with current city practices and policies, and community values.
∑ Simplify the Zoning Code’s affordable housing incentives.
∑ Recalibrate the Zoning Code’s affordable housing incentives to accurately align with 

the affordable housing unit contribution, policies, and community values and goals.
∑ Update the Zoning Code to implement the new IPAH policy.

Problem Statements
The problem statements with the update to the Incentive Policy for Affordable Housing (IPAH) and the 
Zoning Code Affordable Housing Incentives are:
∑ The IPAH and Zoning Code incentives need to be updated to reflect the current economic, market,

and development conditions, and the diversifying demographic needs for affordable housing.
∑ The Arizona Revised Statutes prohibit counties and cities from requiring affordable housing and 

implementing rent controls on private developments.
∑ The zoning incentives for the Residential Sustainable Building Standards are easier to comply 

with and diminish the ability to implement the affordable housing incentives.
∑ The funds to provide fee waivers and reimbursements is not a recurring funding source, and the 

amount is inconsistent.
∑ The affordable housing incentive bonus provisions are considered too generous for the number of 

affordable housing units provided; i.e., is 10% the appropriate minimum percentage contribution, 
etc.?

∑ There are not separate affordable housing incentives for rental and ownership units.
∑ The IPAH and Zoning Code do not include a methodology to calculate an appropriate sales 

price for affordable ownership housing units; i.e., how should the cost differential between market-
rate and affordable housing be calculated?

∑ The affordable housing incentives, associated definitions, and requirements of the Zoning Code 
are rigid and overly complicated.

∑ The Zoning Code’s financial contribution/donation provision allowances have limited application, 
and do not allow in-lieu payments when units can be constructed on the property.

∑ The affordable housing incentives in the Zoning Code do not include equivalent calculations for in-
lieu contributions.

∑ There are no provisions for developments that incorporate affordable housing units without utilizing 
the incentives.

∑ The Zoning Code allows for permanent and one-time affordable housing units; but, the IPAH only 
addresses housing units that are permanently affordable.

Scope of Work
A. The following is a summary of the work that will be completed:

∑ A review and update of the IPAH, which may include the development of new 
or alternative incentive policies.

∑ A review and update of Division 10-20.30 of the Zoning Code, which may include the 
development of new or alternative Zoning Code affordable housing incentives.

∑ A review and update of the applicable Sections of Division 10-20.30 of the Zoning 
Code to simplify and modernize the provisions.



Incentive Policy for Affordable Housing and Zoning Code Update

Page 2 of 2

∑ A review and update of the application, staff review checklist, and process requirements
for developments that utilize the affordable housing incentives.

∑ Recommend modifications to the Zoning Code to remove existing provisions that diminish the 
ability to implement the affordable housing incentives (e.g., Sustainable Building Standards).

B. The following is a summary of work that will not be included in this project:
∑ The identification of recurring funding source(s) to implement the IPAH and related Zoning

Code incentives.
∑ The simultaneous update to other City Codes or policies that may limit a developer’s ability to

provide affordable housing units.
∑ The Residential Sustainable Building Standards will not be revised.
∑ Lobbying for modifications to state and federal regulation.


	Agenda
	AI_5154_Whispering Winds Sign Landmark Overlay 
	       WW PZ Staff Report
	       Zoning Map Application
	       WW Sign Permit Number 1
	       Newspaper Notice
	       Banner Public Hearing PZ Notice
	       HPC Neighborhood Hearing
	       2nd Meeting Waiver
	       Property Maps and Description
	       Notification Letter to adjacents
	       HPC Historic Facade and Signs Grant Application
	Whispering Winds Application Sign Grant
	NOAZ Whispering Winds Motel Refurb NZ13784
	Whispering Winds Restoration Concept #1
	e1

	Photo Jul 27, 12 07 38 PM

	       Landmark Overlay Ap
	       HPC staff report
	       WW HPO Staff amend
	       HPO signature permision
	       WW posting condition
	       February 3, 2021 HPC minutes
	AI_5232_Appointments to the Incentive Policy for Affordable Housing and related Zoning Code Update Workgroup
	       Staff Memo
	       Attachment 1
	       Attachment 2
	       Attachment 3

